
 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Agenda (May 12, 2016) Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

May 12, 2016 7:00 PM  
NEWBERG PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING   

401 EAST THIRD STREET 

 

 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

 

II. ROLL CALL 

 

III.  PUBLIC COMMENTS (5-minute maximum per person – for items not on the agenda) 

 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR  

 

1. Approval of the 4/14/16 Planning Commission meeting minutes 

 

V. QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARINGS (complete registration form to give testimony - 5 minute 

maximum per person except for principals, unless otherwise set by majority motion of the Planning 

Commission).  No new public hearings after 10 p.m. except by majority vote of the Planning 

Commissioners.  

  

1. North Valley Annexation:  Consider a proposal to annex 10.37 acres of property. The property is 

located within the Newberg Urban Growth Boundary and has a Comprehensive Plan designation of 

PQ. Annexation would change the zoning from Yamhill County AF-10 to Newberg R-1. 

APPLICANT: Newberg First Baptist Church 

LOCATION: 24950 North Valley Road  TAX LOT: 3207-900 

FILE NO.:  ANX-16-001  RESOLUTION: 2016-317 

 CRITERIA: Newberg Development Code Sections: 15.250.030 & 15.302.030 

 

2. Columbia Estates Annexation:  Consider a proposal to annex 3 parcels (with a total of 3.06 acres). 

The properties are located within the Newberg Urban Growth Boundary and have a Comprehensive 

Plan designation of MDR.  Annexation would change the zoning from Yamhill County VLDR-1 to 

Newberg R-2.  

APPLICANT: Del Boca Vista, LLC 

LOCATION: North of Columbia Dr., south of Lynn Dr. TAX LOTS: 3218AB-1700, -1701, & -1702 

 FILE NO.:  ANX-16-003  RESOLUTION: 2016-319 

 CRITERIA: Newberg Development Code Sections 15.250.030 & 15.302.030 

 

3. Public Works Maintenance Yard – 520 W. Third St. Annexation:  Consider a proposal to annex 

1.41 acres of property. The proposed annexation is located within the Newberg Urban Growth 

Boundary and has a Comprehensive Plan designation of IND (industrial). Annexation would change 

the zoning from Yamhill County HI (heavy industrial) to Newberg M-2 (light industrial).  

APPLICANT: City of Newberg Public Works Dept. 

LOCATION: 520 W. Third St.  TAX LOT: 3219BD-1000 (western part) 

 FILE NO.:  ANX-16-002  RESOLUTION: 2016-318 

 CRITERIA: Newberg Development Code Sections 15.250.030 & 15.302.030 

 

1 of 328 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Agenda (May 12, 2016) Page 2 of 2 

4. Subdivision preliminary plan & variance – Nova Grace: Consider a proposal to divide a 1.99 acre 

parcel into 14 lots for single-family homes. The property is zoned R-2 (medium density residential). 

Includes a variance request to increase the maximum building height from 30 feet to 33 feet.   

APPLICANT: Del Boca Vista, LLC 

LOCATION: 900 Wynooski St.  TAX LOT: 3220CA-900 

 FILE NO.: SUB3-16-001/VAR-16-001  ORDER: 2016-21 

 CRITERIA: Newberg Development Code Sections 15.235.060(A) & 15.215.040 

  

VI. ITEMS FROM STAFF 

1. Update on Council items 

2. Other reports, letters or correspondence  

3. Next Planning Commission meeting: June 9, 2016 

 

VII. ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS 

 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
FOR QUESTIONS, PLEASE STOP BY THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPT. AT 414 E. FIRST STREET, OR CALL 503-537-1240 

 
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the Community 

Development Department Office Assistant II of any special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as 

possible as and no later than 48 business hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact the Office Assistant at (503) 

537-1240. For TTY services please dial 711. 

2 of 328 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (April 14, 2016)  Page 1 of 9 

NEWBERG PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

April 14, 2016, 7:00 PM 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING (401 E. THIRD STREET) 
 

 

Chair Allyn Edwards called the meeting to order at 7: 00 p.m.  

 

ROLL CALL 
Members Present: Allyn Edwards, Chair                      Jason Dale     

 Philip Smith                          Gary Bliss   

 Cathy Stuhr                           Ron Wolfe 

      

Members Absent: Luis Saavedra, Student    

 

Staff Present: Doug Rux, Community Development Director 

 Bobbie Morgan, Office Assistant II  

 Steve Olson, Senior Planner 

 Sonya Johnson, Engineering Associate  

   

PUBLIC COMMENTS:   

None 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR:   

Approval of the February 25, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

Approval of the March 10, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

 

MOTION:  PC Cathy Stuhr/PC Gary Bliss moved to approve the February 25, 2016 and March 10, 2016 

minutes. Motion carried (6 Yes/ 0 No). 

 

QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING:  Chair Allyn Edwards opened the public hearing at 7:05 pm. 

 

Chehalem Aquatic & Fitness Center - Conditional Use Permit/Design Review/Code Adjustment application to 

build a 40,390 square foot addition with two pools next to the existing building, remodel the existing building into 

a gym, reconfigure the site for new parking, park and landscape areas; and to reduce the amount of required off-

street parking. APPLICANT: Chehalem Park & Recreation District LOCATION: 1802 Haworth Avenue TAX 

LOT: 3217CA-1200 FILE NO.: CUP-16-001/DR2-16-001/ADJC-16-001 ORDER: 2016-20 CRITERIA: Newberg 

Development Code Sections 15.225.060, 15.220.050(B), 15.210.020(C). 

 

Call for abstentions, bias, ex parte contact, and objections to jurisdiction:  

 

PC Philip Smith said he occasionally used the pool. Recently there was an election to expand the pool, and he 

voted in the election. He was a supporter of CPRD and their work. On this matter he had not spoken with CPRD 

or neighbors and thought he could be impartial. 

 

Chair Allyn Edwards explained the public hearing process. 

 

Staff Report:  Senior Planner Steve Olson gave a PowerPoint presentation. This was a request to approve the 

expansion of the Chehalem Aquatic and Fitness Center. He explained the site location. There needed to be a 

Conditional Use Permit because it was an expansion of a recreational facility in the R-1 zone. The applicant tried 

to save as many trees on the site as possible. He then explained the site plan and right-of-way dedication. The 

original application was for 143 parking spaces, but they had to bring it up to 148 to meet the standards. He 

3 of 328 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (April 14, 2016)  Page 2 of 9 

explained how the applicant shifted the design to add five more parking spaces. He showed the perspective 

drawings and proposed floor plan and then summarized the approval criteria for the conditional use, design 

review, and code adjustment. Regarding the parking adjustment, a parking study was done and staff reviewed the 

Institute of Transportation Engineering’s Parking Demand Manual to come up with the required number of spaces, 

which was 197 spaces. The applicant requested a 25% parking adjustment which was 148 spaces. To make up for 

the difference, the applicant was proposing to encourage students to bike to the site and there would be a shared 

parking agreement with the high school to allow use of 20 plus spaces in the south parking lot. They could also 

apply for a parking permit to use Hayworth for on street parking for large events which was an additional 20 

spaces. The parking adjustment would allow the applicant to save trees on the site. Staff thought the demand 

management would be functional if the park district actively used the shared parking agreement. Regarding 

compatibility issues, they met 95% of the lighting plan as two spots needed to be revised to comply with the light 

trespass standard and it was feasible for them to fix that. One change from the staff report was he found out there 

was not a wooden fence all along the property line. It went along half of the property, and a chain link fence went 

along the other half. Some of the neighbors had hedges and some did not. Staff was proposing a visual buffer by 

putting in hedges all around the property, but contacting neighbors to see if they wanted a hedge or wanted to 

keep visibility to the park. There was a request to move the playground and basketball court further west from 

where they were proposed. Staff was not recommending they be moved as more trees would have to be removed 

and it would not reduce the noise. There were also requests for noise deadening by adding wooden fences and 

hedges, but they would not diminish the noise either. Only a masonry wall would be effective for noise, but staff 

was not recommending that. There was a lot of concern regarding the existing trees and there was an arborist 

report going into detail about the health of the trees. An arborist would be on call when there was excavation near 

the trees to monitor the health of the trees. There were comments about construction impacts, and the applicant 

could address those and make sure workers did not park on nearby streets. The Code had a time limit for 

construction of 7 am to 7 pm and if construction damaged streets or public infrastructure, the contractor would be 

responsible for repair by the end of the project. Staff found the design of the building was compatible with the 

existing building and a good fit on the site. If the code adjustment for the parking was approved, it would meet 

the parking code. The general layout provided a safe flow on the site and safer drop off site. There needed to be 

a setback change on one of the signs and right-of-way dedication on Haworth and Cherry Streets. If they were 

able to keep the existing curb side sidewalks along Villa up to the western driveway, it would allow some of the 

trees to remain and east of that the sidewalks would be set back. The water line would need to be eight inches 

instead of six and stormwater needed additional analysis. A traffic study was done and concluded the intersection 

would continue to perform at City standard and no transportation improvements were necessary. He discussed 

the landscape buffer which would be an arborvitae hedge along the eastern border where the neighbors desired a 

hedge. The site plan with 148 parking spaces, which would replace the 143 space plan, met the City’s standards. 

There was a requirement for stormwater infiltration testing, however Engineering staff said it had been addressed 

by the information that was already submitted. There was no chlorine gas in use and there was no need for a 

decommissioning plan. He handed out additional information including the 148 parking space plan, chlorine 

letter, and suggested changes to the staff report. 

 

PC Gary Bliss asked how staff determined that moving the playground or basketball court would not reduce noise. 

SP Steve Olson replied moving them might reduce it slightly, but he had seen studies that moving something 50 

or 60 feet in the open air had almost no impact. There would have to be a forest of hedges to really block the 

sound. There would be more impact if they were moved further away, such as 100 to 200 feet. 

 

PC Gary Bliss discussed how moving the playground further west and removing three trees could reduce noise 

by six decibels which put them in the threshold recommended by the EPA. SP Steve Olson said the applicant 

could describe the operating hours of the park, and moving of the park and basketball court was not part of the 

Conditional Use and none of the criteria applied to them. Only a 25 foot setback was required. The expansion of 

the pool was the Conditional Use. 

PC Gary Bliss asked why it was determined that a storm water infiltration test was not required. SP Steve Olson 

said the City Engineer thought the study already looked at the infiltration and thought it had already been 

4 of 328 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (April 14, 2016)  Page 3 of 9 

addressed. AS Sonya Johnson responded the public works design standards did not require an infiltration test at 

this time. They required considering low impact development facilities and the applicant had chosen to go with a 

flow through facility so there was an underdrain. An extra infiltration test was not needed. 

 

PC Cathy Stuhr said the code adjustment was a Type 1 decision that the Community Development Director could 

decide. Was the Planning Commission deciding that or was staff? SP Steve Olson replied it would be the 

Commission’s decision. Since the Conditional Use Permit was a Planning Commission decision, the whole 

application was tied together and the Commission would be deciding all of it. 

 

Chair Allyn Edwards discussed the arborist’s report. Many of the trees fell in the poor health category, and he 

asked what would be done to those trees. SP Steve Olson replied one of the conditions of approval was having 

the arborist document what happened during construction, identifying any hazardous trees and removing them, 

and going tree by tree and removing any limbs that needed to be removed. The goal was by the end of construction 

to have a healthier stand of trees on the site. 

 

Chair Allyn Edwards clarified there were currently 61 parking spaces and they would be increasing it to 148. 

 

Applicant:  Jim McMasters, CPRD Parks Supervisor, said the voters approved this expansion. They held several 

community meetings so people knew what the layout would be. He thought they could work with the conditions 

of approval and neighbors.  

 

Sid Scott, Scott Edwards Architecture, presented slides on the application including the subject site, shared 

parking with the high school, proposed site plan, additional parking, arborist report, and public comments. The 

current pool would stay open in operation during construction of the new aquatic center and when the aquatic 

center was done, construction on the existing building would begin so there would be continued service. The plan 

for the trees was to save as many as possible. The current site had 169 trees and the current plan would be 205 

trees. There would be many trees when the project was done. They would work with neighbors regarding the 

hedge and the concern regarding sidewalks on the property line.  

 

Jim McMasters said the hours of the park were from dawn to dusk. He gave a history of where the playground 

and basketball court were placed and how they had been moved for safety as well as sound.  

 

Sid Scott continued by stating the basketball court was originally 11 feet from the property line, was moved 210 

feet, and was proposed to be 81 feet from the property line. The playground was originally 54 feet from the 

property line, moved 267 feet, and was proposed to go back to 54 feet where it was originally. He explained and 

showed slides of the new entries for the aquatic center and design of the new aquatic center and existing building. 

 

Gene Loman, contractor, gave comments on the construction sequence and parking during construction. He 

explained the staging areas that would be used as well as temporary parking areas. They wanted to be good 

neighbors and would address any concerns that came up. They knew the curfew hours to work and would rarely 

ask for extensions outside of that. 

 

PC Philip Smith asked why they were trying to maintain the trees instead of taking them down and putting in 

trees that would fit in with the neighborhood better. Jim McMasters replied they had heard from the community 

that they wanted to save as many trees as possible. 

 

PC Philip Smith asked about the screening for the neighbors on the east and if someone could ask for a masonry 

wall. Jim McMasters replied it would be a vegetative screen only.  

PC Philip Smith asked how they were going to make sure the parking plan worked regularly. Jim McMasters 

explained the extra parking at the high school would only be needed five or six times a year during swim meets. 

The swim meets would not grow that much larger, and would be done faster when there were eight lanes rather 

5 of 328 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (April 14, 2016)  Page 4 of 9 

than six lanes. The teams would not be able to park buses and parents could not park RVs in the parking lot, and 

the teams would be informed about parking at the high school and not in the neighborhood.  

 

Chair Allyn Edwards asked if CPRD would provide a shuttle van between the high school and the new facility. 

Jim McMasters said if it was needed they would do that. They were trying to negate impacts on the community. 

 

PC Ron Wolfe asked how much they had exceeded the requirement for greenspace and landscaping. SP Steve 

Olson said they were required to have 15% landscaping, and they had proposed 33%.  

 

Public Testimony: 

Proponents: 

Elizabeth Andrews, Newberg resident, discussed her connection with the pool and passion for the Newberg 

Aquatic Center. She was able to participate in swimming as a student, which taught her hard work and dedication 

which improved her academics, mental health, and handling her time wisely. She thought it was a continuation 

of her education. She was excited about the expansion as it would help give other students what she had 

experienced.  

 

Lisa Rogers, Newberg resident, had participated with the Pool Committee from its inception to today. This group 

of citizens went to the community a number of times to make sure this project was what the community wanted. 

There had been a lot of citizen input. 

 

George Sampson, Newberg resident, was a swim coach for the high school and community teams. Swim meets 

were held about nine times per year. They had discussed shuttling people from the high school parking lot. With 

the 148 parking spaces, there would be a lot better flow of traffic. The meets would not get any bigger. He did 

not think they would want to put extra parking on Haworth to keep the traffic flowing better and for safety. 

 

Steve Wytcherley, Newberg resident, had joined the Save the Pool Campaign two years ago. His daughter was 

involved in the water polo team and he saw the need for a new aquatic center. He explained how he had helped 

with the campaign and joined the Pool Public Advisory Committee who helped design this expansion. He thought 

the aquatic center contributed to a flourishing community. There was a lot of passion and excitement for this 

project. 

 

Opponents:  

Karen McCabe, Newberg resident, said her property was on the east end of the park. She was concerned about 

the large trees on the property line. Two trees had fallen on her backyard last Christmas. There was still one tree 

that she was worried about. She also had to pick up large limbs out of her backyard and some had damaged her 

shed. Trees should not be close to the property line. She agreed with the arborvitae screen and would like the tall 

chain link fence to be repaired that had been damaged when the trees fell over. She was also concerned about the 

basketball court being too close as it was directly behind her house. It was one of the loudest amenities in the 

park. She would like to see it moved further away if possible. Traffic was horrible and on street parking was a 

problem. There should be a stop sign on Cherry, Sitka, and Haworth Streets. About 12 trees on the property line 

on the east side should be removed. 

 

PC Stuhr asked if she was comfortable with an arborist coming to determine which trees needed to be removed. 

Ms. McCabe thought the one tree was already leaning and it was a danger. 

 

Chair Allyn Edwards wanted to alieve as many concerns as possible. The arborist report dealt with the angles of 

the trees and health of the trees and they would be considering what they could do for the trees. 

Undecided: 

Robert Soppe, Newberg resident, was a supporter of CPRD and this project. He thought the Commission needed 

to be careful with the request for a code adjustment. The applicant was asking for a reduction of 25% of the code 

6 of 328 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (April 14, 2016)  Page 5 of 9 

requirement, and the Commission needed to make sure the arguments for the reduction were accurate and 

enforceable. The average peak demand was 197 spaces, and the proposed adjustment was for 148 spaces. This 

would be 75% lower, which was not slightly lower and they did not know the expected peak demand. He also 

questioned how the average peak demand of 197 spaces was determined. Counts were taken only one day and he 

questioned if it was an average day as demand changed seasonally, daily, and randomly. This was weak data and 

should not be relied on. He thought the Transportation Demand Management Plan needed to be looked at to make 

sure it was realistic to the users’ behaviors and demands, was it enforceable, and was it adequate to reduce the 

parking demand. CPRD might find itself in a difficult position if the plan was unsuccessful and the Commission 

might set a precedent for code adjustments. The applicant could support the argument that the number of parking 

spaces per square foot of the expanded facility would be less than with the existing facility to justify a lower 

parking requirement. He was glad to see the sidewalk on the east side was moved away from the curb.  

 

Rebuttal:  Applicant Jim McMasters said when the trees fell over on Ms. McCabe’s property, an arborist came to 

assess the one remaining tree that was leaning. The tree was leaning for the sunlight and some limbs were trimmed 

and more needed to be trimmed. The ten foot chain link fence around her property was put in when the original 

basketball court was put in. It would be repaired. There were playgrounds in other parks that were close to the 

fence and not all parks had basketball courts. There would be more than 20 spaces available at the high school, 

as most of the events took place during the weekend and the high school parking lot was mostly vacant on the 

weekends. 

 

Sid Scott said the basketball court was as far to the west of the site as they could go. The peak parking demand 

for the proposed facility was projected to be 197 parking spaces. 

 

PC Philip Smith asked about the difference between the average parking demand and peak parking demand. Sid 

Scott did not know, only that the experts said that was the peak parking demand. Jim McMasters said the size of 

the meets was not increasing and the spectator area could only hold so many people. They could not hold state-

wide type meets. The meets could be over sooner because there were more lanes. 

 

PC Philip Smith thought there should be incentives for parking at the high school. 

 

PC Cathy Stuhr said outdoor basketball was available at the high school and at other parks and indoor basketball 

at this facility. What if there was no outdoor basketball at this park? Jim McMasters said they were trying to have 

the amenities available to the community. The high school did not have outdoor basketball courts.  

 

PC Philip Smith suggested adding conditions to the Conditional Use Permit that the arborist must certify that any 

tree within 100 feet of the eastern boundary had to be in good health or removed. Jim McMasters replied if the 

tree was unsafe, they would want to remove it. 

 

PC Jason Dale discussed the peak parking and asked what would happen if there was not enough parking during 

those times. Jim McMasters replied if there was a problem, they could look at reducing the programming of the 

site.  

 

Close of public testimony:  Chair Allyn Edwards closed the public testimony at 8:47 pm. 

 

Final comments from staff: 

SP Steve Olson said staff recommended approval of Order 2016-20 as revised. 

Chair Allyn Edwards recessed the meeting for a break at 8:48 pm and reconvened the meeting at 8:54 pm. 

 

Deliberation of commission: 

PC Jason Dale thought this was a good proposal. He agreed with adding a condition for an arborist to look at the 

trees that were 100 feet from the eastern boundary. 

7 of 328 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (April 14, 2016)  Page 6 of 9 

 

PC Philip Smith said after looking at the conditions, what he said before was unneeded.  

 

Chair Allyn Edwards commented that the arborist ascertained the health of the trees and he thought anything that 

was 45% or less considered in poor condition should be removed. 

 

PC Philip Smith asked what the definition of a hazardous tree was.  SP Steve Olson explained the attempt was to 

give the arborist some discretion and authority to determine what was hazardous. 

   

Chair Allyn Edwards agreed that the arborist on site should be the one to decide. 

 

PC Cathy Stuhr appreciated the applicant working with the public. She thought they should consider adding into 

the findings the suggestion by Mr. Soppe regarding the parking. The changes to the staff report also needed to be 

included in the findings. 

 

PC Gary Bliss was concerned with the relocation of the basketball court and playground. He hoped the park 

district would try to alleviate the use of those facilities at night. 

 

MOTION:  PC Philip Smith/PC Cathy Stuhr moved to adopt Order 2016-20 incorporating the proposed 

changes to the staff report and to the findings.  

 

PC Philip Smith was concerned about having adequate parking. 

 

Chair Allyn Edwards said the applicant would be monitoring the situation and there was a possibility in the future 

of clearing the northeastern area of the lot for additional parking. The facilities would be most used on the 

weekend, and the high school parking lot would be open on the weekends. 

 

Motion carried (6 Yes/ 0 No). 

 

The Commission took a five minute break. 

 

LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARING:  Chair Allyn Edwards opened the public hearing at 9:12 pm. 

 

Recreational Marijuana Wholesalers, Laboratories, Research Certificates and Retailers: Consider a 

proposal to amend the Newberg Development Code Chapter 15.05.030 Definitions; 15.305 Zoning Use Tables; 

15.342.110 Stream Corridor Overlay; 15.350.030 Civic Corridor Overlay; 15.356.050 Bypass Interchange 

Overlay; and 15.358.030 and 15.358.050 Interim Industrial overlay for regulations on recreational marijuana 

wholesalers, laboratories, research certificates and retailers as either permitted, conditional or prohibited uses. 

FILE NO.: DCA-16-001 RESOLUTION NO.: 2016-314 

 

Call for abstentions, bias, ex parte contact, and objections to jurisdiction: None. 

 

Staff Report:  Community Development Director Doug Rux presented the staff report. This recommendation 

had been forwarded by the Marijuana Subcommittee. It would allow in certain districts marijuana laboratories as 

a permitted use primarily in the commercial and industrial areas, recreational research certificates as a permitted 

use in the commercial and industrial districts, retailers as a permitted use in commercial with 1,000 foot buffers 

from parks and schools and limited to operation from 9 am to 8 pm, and marijuana wholesalers as a permitted use 

in residential districts and as conditional use in C-2 and permitted in industrial districts. Definitions for laboratory, 

retailer, and wholesaler would be added. Marijuana was legal per State law and he gave a background on the laws. 

OLCC anticipated issuing licenses for wholesalers, laboratories, and researchers in April of 2016 and for retailers 

8 of 328 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (April 14, 2016)  Page 7 of 9 

in July of 2016. One public comment had been received in support of retailers. The City could regulate place, 

time, and manner and a Land Use Compatibility Statement was required by OLCC before issuing the license. He 

explained the limitations of where these facilities could be located and emphasized OLCC would not issue licenses 

in primary residences. A research certificate was good for three years. Marijuana products had to be tested by a 

laboratory. There were many manner regulations in the laws for retailer operations. There was also a handler’s 

permit required for marijuana handlers. Some of the laws had been changed in 2016. A medical marijuana 

dispensary could now sell medical and recreational marijuana and a recreational store could sell both medical and 

recreational. Retail would not be allowed in residential or industrial districts, community facilities, institutional 

districts, and would be allowed in commercial except in the civic corridor and have a 1,000 foot buffer from 

schools and parks. Wholesalers would be allowed in all residential categories with no product allowed on the 

premises. However, OLCC would not issue a license to a primary residence and it could not function as a home 

occupation. Wholesalers would be allowed as conditional use in the C-2 with a 1,000 foot buffer for parks and 

schools and would also be allowed in the industrial districts except for airport industrial. Laboratories would be 

allowed in commercial, institutional, and industrial except for airport industrial. Staff asked if the City should 

allow wholesalers in residential districts and if there should be a separation requirement from retail to retail or 

retail to medical dispensaries. He then discussed the tables showing what would be permitted or prohibited by 

each district. This was the first hearing on this issue, and the Commission’s recommendation would be forwarded 

to the Council who would hold a second hearing. The City was providing the opportunity for operating legal 

businesses within the community for which there was demand, but it was not allowed everywhere in every district. 

Staff recommended approval of the resolution. Today a communication was received from Canna Bros 

Dispensaries regarding the 1,000 foot separation between medical dispensaries and retail facilities and he handed 

it out to the Commission to read.  

 

PC Gary Bliss thought medical and recreational were supposed to be separate, but now they were being allowed 

in the same facility. CDD Doug Rux replied it started out with medical dispensaries selling to card holders, and 

recreational sales could be sold out of medical marijuana dispensaries until December 2016. Now in the 2016 

legislative session they were being merged and could sell both in one facility. The rules would have to be 

modified, but he suggested moving forward with the information they had based upon the laws already adopted 

and go back later to reconcile for any discrepancies. The City had to have something in place before licenses were 

issued by OLCC. 

 

PC Cathy Stuhr asked about wholesalers being allowed in residential. CDD Doug Rux replied staff recommended 

wholesalers be prohibited in all residential districts. 

 

PC Philip Smith asked if the research locations could move into recreational or medical marijuana facilities. CDD 

Doug Rux stated researchers were a separate certificate regulated by OLCC which would allow them to have 

cannabis in their lab to do research. It was possible for a research facility to be in the same location as recreational 

or medical marijuana facilities. 

 

PC Jason Dale asked if processors and labs needed to have a 1,000 foot buffer between facilities. CDD Doug Rux 

did not think so. He explained the buffer requirements for all of the uses. Processors were allowed as a conditional 

use in the C-2 and required a 1,000 foot buffer from schools and parks. 

 

Public Testimony: 

Proponents: 

Larry Brock of Canna Bros suggested adopting the 1,000 foot buffer between recreational retail sales and medical 

dispensaries. It was getting harder to find locations in the bigger cities for these facilities, such as in Portland, and 

they soon would be coming to the smaller cities like Newberg. He thought the City could get a lot more in taxes 

if they allowed recreational sales and they could decide where to allow them. He thought the City could better 

protect people by allowing recreational sales. He did not charge customers the 5% tax for medical marijuana, he 

9 of 328 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (April 14, 2016)  Page 8 of 9 

just paid it out of his pocket. He would probably make the recreational customers pay the 10% tax. He did not 

think patients should pay a tax to use a medical product. 

  

Chair Allyn Edwards asked if he had both medical and recreational licenses. Larry Brock said no, the City did 

not allow recreational sales. He did plan to have both licenses in the future. 

 

PC Philip Smith said if the proposed regulations went forward with a 1,000 foot buffer between outlets, it would 

only allow four possible locations. Larry Brock thought that was a good number for the City. 

 

Larry Brock said regarding the processors, they would not be noticed in the City and did not think a 1,000 foot 

buffer was appropriate. 

 

Opponents and Undecided:  None 

 

Close of public testimony:  Chair Allyn Edwards closed the public hearing at 9:58 p.m. 

 

Final comments from staff: 

CDD Doug Rux said staff’s recommendation was to adopt Resolution 2016-314 with the considerations that 

wholesalers not be allowed in residential districts due to the OLCC restrictions and the 1,000 foot separation 

between retailer and retailer or retailer and dispensaries.  

 

Deliberation of commission: 

PC Philip Smith thought wholesalers should be prohibited in residential districts. He thought C-2 should be the 

preferred place for recreational and medical marijuana establishments and that there should be a 1,000 foot 

separation between them.  

 

MOTION:  PC Cathy Stuhr/PC Ron Wolfe moved to approve Resolution 2016-314 with the following 

modifications: wholesalers were not allowed in any residential district or subdistrict and a 1,000 foot buffer be 

placed between retail to retail and retail to dispensaries. Motion carried (6 Yes/ 0 No). 

 

NEW BUSINESS:  

Economic Development Strategy 

CDD Doug Rux said the Commission had the final strategy documents. The strategy would go to the City Council 

on April 18 for adoption by resolution. 

 

ITEMS FROM STAFF:   
CDD Doug Rux reported the Council adopted the recreational marijuana processors and producers 

recommendations with one modification regarding OLCC not issuing licenses for primary residences. He 

reminded the Commission to submit their Statement of Economic Interest forms by tomorrow. The Council 

gave staff direction to continue discussions with Sportsman Airpark about the purchase of development rights 

and approved the Rourke annexation. The Newberg 2030, the Urban Growth Boundary pre-work, was 

beginning. The Downtown Plan work was still underway. The next Planning Commission meeting would be 

held on May 12, 2016.  

 

ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS:   

PC Philip Smith suggested the cities of Dundee and Newberg and Yamhill County consider making a 

greenspace buffer between Newberg and Dundee so the natural growth of the cities would not come together. 

 

PC Cathy Stuhr discussed something she read regarding onsite consumption of marijuana for employees with 

medical cards during a work shift as necessary for their medical condition if they were alone in an enclosed 

dark room and not visible to others, but could not be intoxicated while on duty. 

10 of 328 



 

 
City of Newberg: Planning Commission Minutes (April 14, 2016)  Page 9 of 9 

 

Chair Allyn Edwards asked about the replacement of Patrick Johnson’s seat on the Planning Commission as he 

had recently been appointed to the City Council. CDD Doug Rux said the opening would be advertised. 

 

 

 

Chair Allyn Edwards adjourned the meeting at 10:12 p.m.  

 

Approved by the Newberg Planning Commission this 12 day of May, 2016. 
 

 

____________________________________  _____________________________ 

 

Allyn Edwards, Planning Commission Chair              Bobbie Morgan, Office Assistant II               

 

11 of 328 



Exhibit “2” 
To Planning Commission Rules 

 

 

City of Newberg: Planning Commission Rules & Guidelines                                   Page 18 

OUTLINE FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 
Newberg Planning Commission 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING, ANNOUNCE THE PURPOSE, DISCUSS TESTIMONY 
PROCEDURE, AND TIME ALLOTMENTS 

 
2.    CALL FOR ABSTENTIONS, BIAS, EX PARTE CONTACT, AND OBJECTIONS TO 

JURISDICTION  
 
3. LEGAL ANNOUNCEMENT 
 READ “QUASI-JUDICIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS” SHEET 
 
4. STAFF REPORT 
 COMMISSION MAY ASK BRIEF QUESTIONS FOR CLARIFICATION 

   
5. PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 5 MINUTE TIME LIMIT PER SPEAKER (15 MINUTE LIMIT FOR APPLICANT AND 
PRINCIPAL OPPONENT).  SPEAKER GOES TO WITNESS TABLE, STATES NAME & 
PRESENTS TESTIMONY.  COMMISSION MAY ASK QUESTIONS OF SPEAKERS. 
 A. APPLICANT(S) 
 B. OTHER PROPONENTS                 
 C. OPPONENTS AND UNDECIDED 
 D. STAFF READS WRITTEN CORRESPONDENCE (TIME LIMIT APPLIES)  
 E. APPLICANT REBUTTAL 
 
6 CLOSE OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY PORTION OF HEARING 
 
7.  FINAL COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND RECOMMENDATION  
 
8. PLANNING COMMISSION DELIBERATION INCLUDING DISCUSSION OF CRITERIA 

WITH FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
9. ACTION BY THE PLANNING COMMMISSION 
 A. ORDER OR RESOLUTION – Usually requires passage of order if the 

commission is the final decision maker, or a resolution if the commission is only 
advisory to the council. 

 B. VOTE – Vote is done by roll call. 
C. COMBINATION – Can be combined with other commission action; separate vote 

on each action is required. 

12 of 328 



 

QUASI-JUDICIAL 

 PUBLIC HEARING PROCESS 

 TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE REQUIREMENTS 

  
 

ORS 197.763 requires certain statements to be made at the commencement of a public hearing. 

 

• The applicable City and State zoning criteria must be listed.  This means that we must advise you of 

the standards that must be satisfied by the applicant prior to our approval of an application.  The 

Planning Staff will list the applicable criteria during his or her presentation of the staff report. 

 

• Persons wishing to participate in this hearing must direct their testimony or the evidence toward the 

criteria stated by the Planner or other specific City or State criteria which you believe apply.  You 

must tell us why the testimony or evidence relates to the criteria. 

 

• Any issue which might be raised in an appeal of this case to the Land Use Board of Appeals 

(LUBA) must be raised in person or by letter at the local level prior to the City approving or 

denying the application.  The law states that the issue must be raised in enough detail to afford the 

decision-maker and the parties an opportunity to respond.  This part of the law is also known as the 

"raise it or waive it" requirement.  If you do not bring it up now, you can't bring it up at LUBA. 

 

• Failure of the applicant to raise constitutional or other issues relating to proposed conditions of 

approval in enough detail to allow the local government or its designee to respond to the issue 

precludes an action for damages in Circuit Court. 

 

•  Prior to the conclusion of the initial evidentiary hearing on an application, any participant may 

request an opportunity to present additional evidence or testimony regarding the application.  The 

Planning Commission will grant such a request through a continuance or extension of the record. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

13 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-001 North Valley - Chehalem Drive\Staff Report_ANX-16-001_FirstBaptistANX.doc 

    Community Development Department 
       P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132 

       503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH ANNEXATION/ZONE CHANGE 

 

HEARING DATE: May 12, 2016 

FILE NO:  ANX-16-001  

REQUEST: Annex 10.37 acres of property, plus the area of the adjacent rights-of-way, into the 

Newberg city limits and change the zoning from Yamhill County AF-10 to Newberg 

R-1. 

LOCATION: Directly north of the current Newberg city limits on the southeast side of the North 

Valley Road/Chehalem Drive intersection, 24950 NE North Valley Road. 

TAX LOT: 3207-00900 

APPLICANT: Newberg First Baptist Church 

OWNER: Same as applicant 

PLAN DISTRICT: PQ (Public/Quasi-Public) 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Planning Commission Resolution 2016-317 with: 

 Exhibit “A”:  Property Map 

 Exhibit “B”:  Legal Description 

 Exhibit “C”:  Findings 

1. Aerial Photo  

2. Concept Development Plan 

3. Current Comprehensive Plan/Zoning Map 

4. Application 

5. Public Comments 
 

14 of 328 

http://www.newbergoregon.gov/


 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-001 North Valley - Chehalem Drive\Staff Report_ANX-16-001_FirstBaptistANX.doc 

A. DESCRIPTION OF APPLICATION:   The proposed annexation is for 10.37 acres of 

property plus the area of the adjacent rights-of-way, located at 24950 NE North Valley Road, 

directly north of the current Newberg city limits at the southeast corner of the North Valley 

Road/Chehalem Drive intersection. The property is located within the Newberg urban growth 

boundary and has a Newberg Comprehensive Plan designation of PQ (Public/Quasi-Public).  

The annexation would change the zoning of the property from Yamhill County AF-10 

(Agriculture/Forestry Small Holding – 10 acre minimum) to Newberg R-1 (Low Density 

Residential).  The R-1 zone has a minimum lot size of 5,000 square feet for future residential 

development.  

B. LOCATION MAP 

 

C. SITE INFORMATION: 

1. Location:  Directly north of the current Newberg city limits on the southeast side of the 

North Valley Road/Chehalem Drive intersection, 24950 NE North Valley Road 

2. Size: 10.37 acres 

3. Topography: The property is relatively flat, with a slope to the south 

4. Current Land Uses: Vacant 

5. Natural Features: The site is entirely vegetated and has several scattered trees. There 

15 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-001 North Valley - Chehalem Drive\Staff Report_ANX-16-001_FirstBaptistANX.doc 

appears to be a wetland/stream along the southeast boundary of the site. 

6. Adjacent Land Uses: 

a. North: rural residential/farm (outside city limits) 

b. East: rural residential/farm (outside city limits) 

c. South: CPRD park and ball fields (inside city limits) 

d. West: rural residential/farm (outside city limits) 

7. Access and Transportation: The property is currently undeveloped, but has frontage on 

both Chehalem Drive and North Valley Road. Both roads are currently under Yamhill 

County jurisdiction. 

8. Utilities:  

a. There is an 8-inch and 10-inch public water line that is located at the 

intersection of Foothills Drive and Chehalem Drive that could be extended 

north along Chehalem Drive to serve the site.   

b. There is an 8-inch public wastewater line that currently ends at the intersection 

of Foothills Drive and Chehalem Drive that could be extended north along 

Chehalem Drive to serve the site.   

c. The current site is an open field of a pervious nature. The applicant must 

comply with the stormwater requirements of the municipal code and PW 

Design and Construction Standards Manual in effect at the time of site 

development.  Stormwater currently flows south along Chehalem Drive 

through a roadside ditch.  A 36-inch storm sewer pipe is located just north of 

the intersection of Foothills Drive and Chehalem Drive. 

d. As required by the Newberg Municipal Code and at the time of site 

development, the applicant shall install all overhead utilities underground.  

 

D. PROCESS:  An annexation and zone change request is a Type III application and follows the 

procedures in Newberg Development Code 15.100.050.  The Planning Commission will hold 

a quasi-judicial hearing on the application.  The Commission makes a recommendation on the 

application based on the criteria listed in the attached findings.  The Planning Commission’s 

recommendation is forwarded to the City Council, who will hold a hearing and render a final 

decision on the application. State law recently changed with the passage and adoption of 

Oregon Senate Bill 1573, which added language to ORS 222.111 preempting Newberg’s 

requirement that annexations go to a public vote, and instead directs the legislative body of a 

city to annex property without a public vote when the property meets certain requirements. 

Important dates related to this application are as follows: 

4/19/16: The Community Development Director deemed the application complete. 

 4/18/16: The applicant mailed notice to the property owners within 500 feet of the site and 

posted the site. 

4/27/16: The Newberg Graphic published notice of the Planning Commission hearing. 

 5/12/16: The Planning Commission will hold a quasi-judicial hearing to consider the 

application. 

E. AGENCY COMMENTS:  The application was routed to several public agencies for review 

and comment.  Comments and recommendations from city departments have been 

16 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-001 North Valley - Chehalem Drive\Staff Report_ANX-16-001_FirstBaptistANX.doc 

incorporated into the findings and conditions.  As of the writing of this report, the city 

received the following agency comments:  

Newberg School District:  Reviewed; no conflict. The pedestrian path to the park and schools 

is critical due to unsafe walking conditions on Chehalem Drive and North Valley Road. (note: 

this comment is to the draft future development plan, which is not under consideration at this 

time). 

F. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  As of the writing of this report, the city has received one written 

public comment, which is attached as Attachment 5 to this staff report.  The public comment 

expressed concern about traffic safety issues at the Chehalem Drive/North Valley Road 

intersection.  Intersection safety is concern for the city, and this is an issue that would be 

analyzed and mitigated at the time of development.  Future development of the property would 

require a traffic study to identify necessary improvements for traffic safety and function.  In 

any case, frontage improvements along both Chehalem Drive and North Valley Road would 

be required, as well as fixing any known issues such as a sight distance issue at the 

intersection.  

G. ANALYSIS:  This is an annexation request for 10.37 acres of property plus the area of the 

adjacent rights-of-way of property that is already identified as being within the Newberg urban 

growth boundary. The property has a Comprehensive Plan designation of PQ (Public/Quasi-

Public), which corresponds with the requested zoning of R-1 (Low Density Residential) per 

section 15.250.080 of the Newberg Development Code. According to the most recent analysis 

completed as part of the recent “Martell Commons” Comprehensive Plan Map and Zone Map 

amendment, the city has a deficit of 37 acres of LDR land to meet 2030 housing needs.  

Annexation of this property will provide additional residential development opportunities to 

meet future housing demands.  

Adequate public utilities are available to serve the site within three years – there are both 

public water and wastewater lines located at the intersection of Foothills Drive and Chehalem 

Drive. Future development will require the public utilities to be extended north along 

Chehalem Drive adjacent to the school property and park property to the site, and then to and 

through the site to serve future development.  

The site is located at the southeast corner of the Chehalem Drive/North Valley Road 

intersection. Both roads are designated as major collectors in the Yamhill County TSP 

Functional Classification Map (TSP – Appendix). Street improvements to both frontages will 

be required at the time of development, and there will likely be a requirement for a sidewalk to 

be extended south along Chehalem Drive to connect at Foothills Drive. In addition, future 

development will likely require a traffic study, which will identify other necessary mitigation 

measures, including improvements to the site distance issue at the intersection.   

State law recently changed with the passage and adoption of Oregon Senate Bill 1573, which 

added language to ORS 222.111 preempting Newberg’s (and other cities) requirement that 

annexations go to a public vote, and instead directs the legislative body of a city to annex property 

without a public vote when the property meets certain requirements, including: being within the 

urban growth boundary; subject to the Comprehensive Plan of the city; contiguous to city limits; 

and meeting the city’s adopted Development Code criteria for annexation. This property meets 

17 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-001 North Valley - Chehalem Drive\Staff Report_ANX-16-001_FirstBaptistANX.doc 

those criteria as outlined in the findings in Exhibit “C” and will not be sent to a public vote. The 

City Council will make the final local decision on this application for annexation.  

H. PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  The preliminary staff recommendation 

is made in the absence of public hearing testimony, and may be modified subsequent to the 

close of the public hearing.  At this writing, staff recommends the following motion: 

 Move to adopt Planning Commission Resolution 2016-317, which recommends that the City 

Council approve the requested annexation and zone change.

18 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-001 North Valley - Chehalem Drive\Staff Report_ANX-16-001_FirstBaptistANX.doc 

 PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 2016-317 

A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE AN ANNEXATION OF 10.37 

ACRES OF PROPERTY, PLUS THE AREA OF THE ADJACENT RIGHTS-OF-WAY, INTO THE CITY OF 

NEWBERG AND CHANGE THE ZONING FROM YAMHILL COUNTY AF-10 TO NEWBERG R-1, FOR 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 24950 NE NORTH VALLEY ROAD, TAX LOT 3207-00900 

RECITALS 

1. The Newberg First Baptist Church submitted an application to annex 10.37 acres of property, plus 

the area of the adjacent rights-of-way, into the City of Newberg and change the zoning from 

Yamhill County AF-10 to Newberg R-1.  The property is located directly north of the current 

Newberg city limits at the southeast corner of the Chehalem Drive/North Valley Road 

intersection, Tax Lot 3207-00900. 

2. After proper notice, the Newberg Planning Commission held a hearing on May 12, 2016, to 

consider the application.  The Commission considered testimony, and deliberated. 

3. The Newberg Planning Commission finds that the application meets the applicable Newberg 

Development Code criteria as shown in the findings in Exhibit “C”. 

4. State law recently changed with the passage and adoption of Oregon Senate Bill 1573, which 

added language to ORS 222.111 that preempts Newberg’s requirement that annexations go to a 

public vote, and instead directs the legislative body of a city to annex property without a public 

vote when the property meets certain requirements, including: being within the urban growth 

boundary; subject to the Comprehensive Plan of the city; contiguous to city limits; and meeting 

the city’s adopted Development Code criteria for annexation. This property meets those criteria. 

The Newberg Planning Commission resolves as follows: 

1. The Planning Commission recommends that the City Council annex the property shown in 

Exhibit “A” and described in Exhibit “B”, along with a zone change to R-1, and withdraw the 

property from the Newberg Rural Fire Protection District.  Exhibits "A" and “B” are hereby 

adopted and by this reference incorporated. 

2. This recommendation is based on the findings shown in Exhibit “C”.  Exhibit "C" is hereby 

adopted and by this reference incorporated. 

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this 10th day of March, 2016. 

        ATTEST: 

 

Planning Commission Chair     Planning Commission Secretary 

19 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-001 North Valley - Chehalem Drive\Staff Report_ANX-16-001_FirstBaptistANX.doc 

Exhibit “A” to Planning Commission Resolution No. 2016-317 

Property Map – First Baptist Annexation 

20 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-001 North Valley - Chehalem Drive\Staff Report_ANX-16-001_FirstBaptistANX.doc 

Exhibit “B” to Planning Commission Resolution No. 2016-317 

Legal Description – First Baptist Annexation 
 

 

21 of 328 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-001 North Valley - Chehalem Drive\Staff Report_ANX-16-001_FirstBaptistANX.doc 

Exhibit “C” to Planning Commission Resolution No. 2016-317 

Findings –File ANX-16-001 – First Baptist Annexation 

A. 15.250.020 Conditions for annexation. 

The following conditions must be met prior to or concurrent with city processing of 

any annexation request: 

A. The subject site must be located within the Newberg urban growth boundary or 

Newberg urban reserve areas. 

B. The subject site must be contiguous to the existing city limits. 

Finding:  The First Baptist property, located at 24950 NE North Valley Road, Tax Lot 3207-00900, 

is located within the urban growth boundary and is contiguous to the Newberg city limits along its 

southern boundary. The legal description of area to be annexed includes the adjacent Chehalem 

Drive and North Valley Road rights-of-way, which provides for future continuity of the city limits.  

This criterion is met.  

B. 15.250.030 Quasi-judicial annexation criteria. 

The following criteria shall apply to all annexation requests: 

A. The proposed use for the site complies with the Newberg comprehensive plan 

and with the designation on the Newberg comprehensive plan map. If a 

redesignation of the plan map is requested concurrent with annexation, the uses 

allowed under the proposed designation must comply with the Newberg 

comprehensive plan. 

Finding: The property has a Comprehensive Plan designation of PQ (Public/Quasi-Public), which 

corresponds with the requested zoning of R-1 (Low Density Residential). Section 15.250.080 of the 

Newberg Development Code says that any zoning designation is consistent with the PQ 

Comprehensive Plan designation.  The PQ designation is typically used to indicate the location of 

public/quasi-public uses such as schools and churches; these uses are typically permitted in any zone, 

which is why any zone can be applied under a PQ designation. The PQ designation was likely 

applied at the time of the urban growth boundary expansion in consultation with the property owners 

to pave the way for a future church on the site; however, the property owners would be permitted to 

develop the property with any permitted or conditionally permitted use in the R-1 zone and not held 

to only a PQ type of development. This criterion is met. 

B. An adequate level of urban services must be available, or made available, within 

three years’ time of annexation, except as noted in subsection (E) of this section. 

An adequate level of urban services shall be defined as: 

 1. Municipal wastewater and water service meeting the requirements 

enumerated in the Newberg comprehensive plan for provision of these services. 

22 of 328 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=79
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=79
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=79
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=79


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-001 North Valley - Chehalem Drive\Staff Report_ANX-16-001_FirstBaptistANX.doc 

 2. Roads with an adequate design capacity for the proposed use and 

projected future uses. Where construction of the road is not deemed necessary 

within the three-year time period, the city shall note requirements such as 

dedication of right-of-way, waiver of remonstrance against assessment for road 

improvement costs, or participation in other traffic improvement costs, for 

application at the appropriate level of the planning process. The city shall also 

consider public costs for improvement and the ability of the city to provide for those 

costs. 

Finding: City water, sanitary sewer and stormwater lines are not located adjacent to this property.  

The nearest services are located at the intersection of Foothills Drive and Chehalem Drive, but there 

is adequate capacity for the utilities to be extended to the property within three years.  At the time of 

development, services could be extended to the north along Chehalem Drive to serve the property.  

Downstream of the property, the sanitary sewer flows to the Chehalem Pump Station.  At the time of 

development, an analysis of the pump station is required, and any necessary upgrades to the pump 

station would be completed by the developer. 

There appears to be wetlands located at the southern end of the property.  At the time of 

development, a wetland delineation/determination will be required, along with all associated permits.  

The property has road frontage along Chehalem Drive and North Valley Road.  Future development 

of this property will necessitate roadway frontage improvements, along all property frontages, to City 

standards.  Due to limited sight distance at the intersection of North Valley Road and Chehalem 

Drive, improvements to this intersection will be necessary to meet engineering sight distance 

standards.  Additionally, a pedestrian sidewalk will be required to be installed from the property 

south along Chehalem Drive to Foothills Drive.  

C. Findings documenting the availability of police, fire, parks, and school facilities 

and services shall be made to allow for conclusionary findings either for or against 

the proposed annexation. The adequacy of these services shall be considered in 

relation to annexation proposals. 

Finding: The city sends the application information out to the Police and Fire Departments, 

Chehalem Parks and Recreation District (CPRD), and the Newberg School District, among other 

agencies, for comments prior to the staff report. In addition, the applicants indicate that they 

contacted the Newberg School District and the Police and Fire Departments, and verified that there 

were no issues with serving future development on this site. The School District did comment that a 

future pedestrian path from the development to the adjacent park would be critical due to the unsafe 

pedestrian conditions on Chehalem Drive. There is no information to suggest that city services could 

not support the addition of the 10.37 acres of property, plus the area of the adjacent rights-of-way, to 

the city limits, and in fact future development of the site helps fund these city services and other 

System Development Charge or permit fee funded services such as the School District and CPRD. It 

should be noted that the City of Newberg does not do future planning for the Parks District or the 

School District; however, the city coordinates with those agencies on a regular basis in regards to 

future planning efforts.  This type of coordination is typically done at the time of urban growth 

23 of 328 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=249
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-001 North Valley - Chehalem Drive\Staff Report_ANX-16-001_FirstBaptistANX.doc 

boundary expansion, when properties are added to serve as the future 20-year urbanizable area, or 

areas where the city limits is expected to expand to meet growth needs.   

D. The burden for providing the findings for subsections (A), (B) and (C) of this 

section is placed upon the applicant. 

Finding: The applicant submitted adequate information to allow the city to make findings to the 

applicable criteria.  

E. The city council may annex properties where urban services are not and cannot 

practically be made available within the three-year time frame noted in subsection 

(B) of this section, but where annexation is needed to address a health hazard, to 

annex an island, to address wastewater or water connection issues for existing 

development, to address specific legal or contract issues, to annex property where 

the timing and provision of adequate services in relation to development is or will 

be addressed through legislatively adopted specific area plans or similar plans, or to 

address similar situations. In these cases, absent a specific legal or contractual 

constraint, the city council shall apply an interim zone, such as a limited-use 

overlay, that would limit development of the property until such time as the services 

become available.  

Finding: This criterion is not applicable because adequate urban services are found to be available 

within the three year time frame. 

C. 15.302.030 Procedures for comprehensive plan map and zoning map amendments. 

A.3. Amendment Criteria. The owner must demonstrate compliance with the 

following criteria: 

a. The proposed change is consistent with and promotes the goals and policies of 

the Newberg comprehensive plan and this code; 

Finding: The property has a Comprehensive Plan designation of PQ (Public/Quasi-Public), which 

corresponds with the requested zoning of R-1 (Low Density Residential) as section 15.250.080 of the 

Newberg Development Code says that any zoning designation is consistent with the PQ 

Comprehensive Plan designation.  The Comprehensive Plan Housing Goal says “To provide for 

diversity in the type, density and location of housing within the City to ensure there is an adequate 

supply of affordable housing units to meet the needs of City residents of various income levels.” 

Annexations meet the intent of the Goal because they provide land to meet the needs of City 

residents.  The buildable land data in the Comprehensive Plan is rather outdated, but the most recent 

analysis done for a recent zone change showed a need for 37 acres of LDR land.  Annexation of this 

property would help the city meet this deficiency. This criterion is met.  

b. Public facilities and services are or can be reasonably made available to support 

the uses allowed by the proposed change; 

24 of 328 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=68
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=68
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=23
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=79
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-001 North Valley - Chehalem Drive\Staff Report_ANX-16-001_FirstBaptistANX.doc 

Finding: As demonstrated in the finding to 15.250.030.B. above, the applicant has demonstrated that 

adequate public facilities and services can be reasonably made available to support future 

development of the property at R-1 permitted densities.  

c. Compliance with the State Transportation Planning Rule (OAR 660-012-0060) 

for proposals that significantly affect transportation facilities. 

Finding: Annexation of the property complies with the State Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) 

(OAR 660-012-0060) because it meets the requirements for an amendment to a zoning map that does 

not significantly affect an existing or planned transportation facility as permitted by Subsection (9) of 

the TPR: the proposed zoning of R-1 is consistent with the existing comprehensive plan map 

designation of PQ; the City of Newberg has an acknowledged TSP which included this area in the 

urban reserve as planned future urbanizable land; this property was brought into the urban growth 

boundary in 2006 as part of a larger urban growth boundary amendment that included a full report 

with adequate justifications for transportation and other public facilities.  

 

OAR 660-012-0060(9) Notwithstanding section (1) of this rule, a local government may find 

that an amendment to a zoning map does not significantly affect an existing or planned 

transportation facility if all of the following requirements are met. 

(a) The proposed zoning is consistent with the existing comprehensive plan map designation 

and the amendment does not change the comprehensive plan map; 

(b) The local government has an acknowledged TSP and the proposed zoning is consistent 

with the TSP; and 

(c) The area subject to the zoning map amendment was not exempted from this rule at the 

time of an urban growth boundary amendment as permitted in OAR 660-024-0020(1)(d), or 

the area was exempted from this rule but the local government has a subsequently 

acknowledged TSP amendment that accounted for urbanization of the area. 

[Subsection (1) of OAR 660-012-0060] 

(1) If an amendment to a functional plan, an acknowledged comprehensive plan, or a 

land use regulation (including a zoning map) would significantly affect an existing or 

planned transportation facility, then the local government must put in place measures 

as provided in section (2) of this rule, unless the amendment is allowed under section 

(3), (9) or (10) of this rule. A plan or land use regulation amendment significantly 

affects a transportation facility if it would: 

(a) Change the functional classification of an existing or planned transportation 

facility (exclusive of correction of map errors in an adopted plan); 

(b) Change standards implementing a functional classification system; or 

(c) Result in any of the effects listed in paragraphs (A) through (C) of this subsection 

based on projected conditions measured at the end of the planning period identified 

25 of 328 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-001 North Valley - Chehalem Drive\Staff Report_ANX-16-001_FirstBaptistANX.doc 

in the adopted TSP. As part of evaluating projected conditions, the amount of traffic 

projected to be generated within the area of the amendment may be reduced if the 

amendment includes an enforceable, ongoing requirement that would demonstrably 

limit traffic generation, including, but not limited to, transportation demand 

management. This reduction may diminish or completely eliminate the significant 

effect of the amendment. 

(A) Types or levels of travel or access that are inconsistent with the functional 

classification of an existing or planned transportation facility; 

(B) Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility such 

that it would not meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or 

comprehensive plan; or 

(C) Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility that is 

otherwise projected to not meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or 

comprehensive plan. 

 

D. Conclusion:  Based on the above-mentioned findings, the application meets the criteria of the 

Newberg Development Code. 

26 of 328 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-001 North Valley - Chehalem Drive\Staff Report_ANX-16-001_FirstBaptistANX.doc 

Attachment 1:  Aerial Photo 
 

27 of 328 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-001 North Valley - Chehalem Drive\Staff Report_ANX-16-001_FirstBaptistANX.doc 

Attachment 2:  Concept Development Plan 

28 of 328 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-001 North Valley - Chehalem Drive\Staff Report_ANX-16-001_FirstBaptistANX.doc 

Attachment 3:  Current Comprehensive Plan/Zoning Map 
 

 

29 of 328 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-001 North Valley - Chehalem Drive\Staff Report_ANX-16-001_FirstBaptistANX.doc 

   Planning and Building Department 
    P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132 

     503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

NOTICE OF DECISION 

{PROJECT TITLE} ANNEXATION/ZONE CHANGE  

 [Date of Letter]  

[Applicant Name] [All persons providing comment] 

[Applicant Mailing Address] 

[Mailing City ST, ZIP] 

 

On [Hearing date], the Newberg City Council adopted Order 20xx-xxxx, approving an annexation, 

and a zone change from { } to { }, for property at {address}, Yamhill County Tax Lot {Tax Lot}.  

The order became final on the hearing date.  A copy of the order may be viewed on the city’s website 

at http://www.newbergoregon.gov/sites/default/files/Order0031_0.pdf  

This ordinance is subject to a public vote. The Council also approved Resolution 20xx -, setting this 

item for a [date] election.   

Any party aggrieved by this decision may appeal to the Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA) by first 

filing a “Notice of Intent to Appeal” within 21 days after the land use decision became final (OAR-

661-010-0010(3)).  For details on filing an appeal, contact the Land Use Board of Appeals at 503-

373-1265 (550 Capitol Street NE Suite 235, Salem, OR 97301-2552). 

Please remove all notice signs from the site. 

If you have any questions; please contact me at [planner phone] or [planner e-mail]. 

Sincerely, 

 

[Planner name and position] 

Enc 

cc: file [File no]  

30 of 328 

http://www.newbergoregon.gov/
http://www.newbergoregon.gov/sites/default/files/Order0031_0.pdf


 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Newberg Annexation 
 

 

24950 NE North Valley Road, Newberg, OR 97132 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

March 7, 2016 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 4

31 of 328 



 

Newberg Annexation – 24950 NE North Valley Rd.  WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc. 

 
ii 

 

 

Annexation Application 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared for: 

Newberg First Baptist Church 
 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: 

Westlake Consultants, Inc. 
15115 SW Sequoia Parkway, Suite 150 

Tigard, Oregon 97224 

Phone:  503.684.0652 

Fax: 503.624.0157 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 4

32 of 328 



 

Newberg Annexation – 24950 NE North Valley Rd.  WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc. 

 
iii 

 

 

 

 

Table of Contents                 Page 
 

 
Application and Subject Site Summary ...................................................................................................................... 1 

Application Description .............................................................................................................................................. 2 

City of Newberg Annexation Criteria ......................................................................................................................... 3 

CONCLUSION .............................................................................................................................................................. 6 

 

 
 

Exhibits 
 

   

A Title Report  

B Map and Legal Description  

C General Land Use Plan  

D Development Concept Statement  

E Public Facilities Financing Statement  

F Positive and Negative Effects Statement  

G Concept Pedestrian Connection Plan  

H Memo for Sewer Availability  

I Measure 49 Waiver  

J Annexation Consent Forms  

K Application Form  

L Transportation Planning Rule Consistency  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

Attachment 4

33 of 328 



 

Newberg Annexation – 24950 NE North Valley Rd.  WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc. 

P a g e  | 1 

   

   

   

Application and Subject Site Summary  
 
 

SUBJECT PROPERTY: Tax Map R3207  Tax Lot 00900 
 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 24950 NE North Valley Road, Newberg, OR 97132 
 

PROPOSAL: Annexation into City of Newberg with R-1 zoning  
 

SITE SIZE: 10.37 acres 
 

COUNTY ZONING DESIGNATION: AF-10 Agriculture/Forestry Small Holding District 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATION: 
 

REQUESTED ZONING: 
 

PROPERTY OWNER & APPLICANT: 

PQ – Public/Quasi-Public 
 
R-1 Low Density Residential 
 
Newberg First Baptist Church 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 
 
 

 

 

Attachment 4

34 of 328 



 

Newberg Annexation – 24950 NE North Valley Rd.  WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc. 

P a g e  | 2 

Application Description 

Introduction 

The applicant, Newberg First Baptist Church, is the owner of the property at 24950 NE North Valley 

Road, Newberg, OR 97132. The church is seeking to annex the 10.37 acre parcel into the City of 

Newberg as R-1 Residential. A Pre-Application meeting was held with the City of Newberg in February 

of 2016 to discuss the annexation process and requirements. 

Proposal 

This annexation application requests that the site be annexed with R-1 zoning. This zoning will allow 

the site to be developed with detached single family homes consistent with surrounding developments 

in the area. Current zoning regulations would allow the 10 acre site to be developed at approximately 6 

to 7 lots per acre resulting in the potential to add 60 to 70 new homes to the site. 

Existing Conditions 

As depicted below by Figure 1, aerial photograph, the subject site is surrounded on the east, north, and 

west by large lot residential and farmland. To the south of the site is Crater Park and the Darnell Wright 

Sports Complex. South of the park, are the Chehalem Valley Middle School and Antonia Crater 

Elementary School. The site is currently vacant with an open field and a few trees in the NE corner.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                   

Figure 1 – Aerial Photograph 

SITE 

Attachment 4

35 of 328 



 

Newberg Annexation – 24950 NE North Valley Rd.  WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc. 

P a g e  | 3 

Public Facilities 

1. Sanitary Sewer:  There is a City of Newberg 8” sewer main located south of the site along 

Chehalem Drive. A public sanitary pump station is located approximately 2,600 feet south 

of the site along Chehalem Drive. 

2. Water Service:  There is a City of Newberg 8” water main located south of the site 

along Chehalem Drive.  

3. Stormwater Management: There are stormwater lines south of the site located along 

Chehalem Drive. 

4. Streets: Chehalem Drive and NE North Valley Road are both 2 lane roads. They 

are classified as Major Collectors. 
 

City of Newberg Annexation Criteria 

Applicant Narrative 

The City of Newberg Municipal Code sections applicable to this Annexation Request include:  

 
Chapter 15.250 ANNEXATIONS 

 15.250.020 Conditions for Annexation 
 15.250.030 Quasi-judicial Criteria 
 15.250.040 Quasi-judicial procedures 
 15.250.050 Application requirements for quasi-judicial annexations 
 15.250.080 Comprehensive plan and zoning designations 
 15.250.09 

 
The specific applicable sub-sections from these Articles and the Applicant Responses demonstrating 
compliance with each are as follows: 

 

Chapter 15.250 ANNEXATIONS 
15.250.020 Conditions for annexation 
The following conditions must be met prior to or concurrent with city processing of any annexation 
request: 

A. The subject site must be located within the Newberg urban growth boundary or Newberg urban 
reserve areas. 

B. The subject site must be contiguous to the existing city limits. [Ord. 2745 § 1 (Exh. A), 7-18-11; 
Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.261.] 

APPLICANT'S  RESPONSE: 
The subject site is located within the Newberg Urban growth boundary. The subject site is 
contiguous to the existing city limits. 
 
15.250.030 Quasi-judicial annexation criteria 
Quasi-judicial annexation applications are those filed pursuant to the application of property owners and 
exclude legislative annexations. The following criteria shall apply to all quasi-judicial annexation 
requests: 

Attachment 4

36 of 328 



 

Newberg Annexation – 24950 NE North Valley Rd.  WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc. 

P a g e  | 4 

A. The proposed use for the site complies with the Newberg comprehensive plan and with the 
designation on the Newberg comprehensive plan map. If a redesignation of the plan map is 
requested concurrent with annexation, the uses allowed under the proposed designation must 
comply with the Newberg comprehensive plan. 

APPLICANT'S  RESPONSE: 
The current Newberg Comprehensive Plan labels the site as PQ – Public/Quasi-public. As 
discussed further in this narrative, 15.250.080 states that land designated as PQ can be zoned 
as any type of zoning designation when being annexed into the City. The annexation 
application is requesting R-1, Low Density Residential be applied upon annexation to match 
the existing development and zoning in the area. The R-1 will also allow the future 
development of the site for detached single family residential. 
 

B. An adequate level of urban services must be available, or made available, within three years’ 
time of annexation, except as noted in subsection (E) of this section. An “adequate level of 
urban services” shall be defined as: 
1. Municipal wastewater and water service meeting the requirements enumerated in the 

Newberg comprehensive plan for provision of these services. 
APPLICANT'S  RESPONSE: 
The subject site can be served by municipal wastewater and water service with the extension 
of main lines to the site within the Chehalem Drive public right-of-way. The memo in Exhibit H 
demonstrates the ability of the site to be adequately and timely served by the extension of 
sewer services with capacity. 
 

2. Roads with an adequate design capacity for the proposed use and projected future uses. 
Where construction of the road is not deemed necessary within the three-year time period, 
the city shall note requirements such as dedication of right-of-way, waiver of remonstrance 
against assessment for road improvement costs, or participation in other traffic improvement 
costs, for application at the appropriate level of the planning process. The city shall also 
consider public costs for improvement and the ability of the city to provide for those costs. 

APPLICANT'S  RESPONSE: 
Street improvements will be conditioned as required through review and approval of the future 
development of the site as a single family residential subdivision. Consistent with the 
applicable provisions of this section, the Development Concept Statement demonstrates the 
type of development that is proposed for the site. There are no conditions present on the 
property preventing compliance with a waiver of remonstrance for road improvements nor 
participation along with the City in traffic improvement costs associated with the future 
development of the property. 
 

C. Findings documenting the availability of police, fire, parks, and school facilities and services 
shall be made to allow for conclusionary findings either for or against the proposed annexation. 
The adequacy of these services shall be considered in relation to annexation proposals. 

APPLICANT'S  RESPONSE: 
The Newberg School District was contacted about the annexation request. The district verified 
that it had the capacity to serve a 70 home residential development on the site. The Newberg 
Fire and Police Departments were contacted and verified that there not be any issues with 
providing service to the site. These agencies will also receive this application for annexation to 
provide further comments during the process. Parks replies are pending and will be provided 
through the review process of this application. 
 

D. The burden for providing the findings for subsections (A), (B) and (C) of this section is placed 
upon the applicant. 

Attachment 4

37 of 328 



 

Newberg Annexation – 24950 NE North Valley Rd.  WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc. 

P a g e  | 5 

E. The city council may annex properties where urban services are not and cannot practically be 
made available within the three-year time frame noted in subsection (B) of this section, but 
where annexation is needed to address a health hazard, to annex an island, to address 
wastewater or water connection issues for existing development, to address specific legal or 
contract issues, to annex property where the timing and provision of adequate services in 
relation to development is or will be addressed through legislatively adopted specific area plans 
or similar plans, or to address similar situations. In these cases, absent a specific legal or 
contractual constraint, the city shall apply an interim zone, such as a limited-use overlay, that 
would limit development of the property until such time as the services become available. 
[Ord. 2745 § 1 (Exh. A), 7-18-11; Ord. 2640, 2-21-06; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 
§ 151.262.] 

APPLICANT'S  RESPONSE: 
As addressed in this application, urban services are available or can be made readily available 
within 3 years through development of the property as a detached single family residential 
subdivision. Thus, this section is not applicable. 
 
15.250.040 Quasi-judicial annexation procedures. 
All quasi-judicial annexation requests approved by the city council shall be referred to the voters in 
accordance with the requirements of this code and ORS Chapter 222. [procedural regulations omitted 
for brevity] 
APPLICANT'S  RESPONSE: 
The applicant is aware of the procedures for the annexation. This application for annexation is 
submitted to the City of Newberg to be considered before the Planning Commission and City 
Council for their vote to refer the annexation to the November 2016 general election ballot.   
 
15.250.050 Application requirements for quasi-judicial annexations. 
Applications for quasi-judicial annexations shall be made on forms provided by the planning division 
and include the following material: 
 

A. Written consent to the annexation signed by the requisite number of affected property owners, 
electors, or both to conduct an election within the area to be annexed, as provided by state law. 
The consent shall include a waiver stating that the owner will not file any demand against the 
city under Measure 49, approved November 6, 2007, that amended ORS Chapters 195 and 
197. 

B. Legal description of the property to be annexed and a boundary survey certified by a registered 
engineer or surveyor. 

C. Vicinity map and map of the area to be annexed including adjacent city territory. 
D. General land use plan indicating types and intensities of proposed development, transportation 

corridors (including pedestrian and vehicular corridors), watercourses, significant natural 
features, open space, significant stands of mature trees, wildlife travel corridors, and adjoining 
development. 

E. Statement of overall development concept and methods by which physical and related social 
environment of the site, surrounding area, and community will be enhanced. 

F. Annexation fees, as set by city council resolution. 
G. Statement outlining method and source of financing to provide additional public facilities. 
H. Comprehensive narrative of potential positive and negative physical, aesthetic, and related 

social effects of the proposed development on the community as a whole and on the smaller 
subcommunity or neighborhood of which it will become a part and proposed actions to mitigate 
such effects. 

I. Concurrent with application for annexation, the property may be assigned one of the following 
methods for development plan review: 
1. A planned unit development approved through a Type III procedure. 
2. A development agreement approved by the city council. 

Attachment 4

38 of 328 



 

Newberg Annexation – 24950 NE North Valley Rd.  WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc. 

P a g e  | 6 

3. A contract annexation as provided for in the state statutes. Development plans must be 
approved and an annexation contract must be signed by the city council in order to use the 
contract annexation process. [Ord. 2745 § 1 (Exh. A), 7-18-11; Ord. 2693 § 1 (Exh. A(4)), 3-
3-08; Ord. 2612, 12-6-04; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.264.] 

APPLICANT'S  RESPONSE: 
The applicant is aware of the process for the application. All applicable materials listed in this 
section for the submittal of this annexation are included with this application. 
 
 
15.250.080 Comprehensive plan and zoning designations 

A. The comprehensive plan map designation of the property at the time of annexation shall be 
used as a criterion to determine whether or not the proposed request complies with the 
Newberg comprehensive plan. A redesignation of the comprehensive plan map may be 
requested concurrent with annexation. The proposed redesignation shall then be used to 
determine compliance with the Newberg comprehensive plan. 

B. Upon annexation, the area annexed shall be automatically zoned to the corresponding 
land use zoning classification which implements the Newberg comprehensive plan map 
designation. The corresponding designations are shown in the table below. The procedures and 
criteria of NMC 15.302.030 shall not be required. 

Comprehensive 
Plan 
Classification 

Appropriate Zoning 
Classification 

OS Any zoning classification 
LDR R-1 
MDR R-2, R-4 
HDR R-3, R-4 
COM C-1, C-2, or C-3 as 

determined by 
the director 

MIX C-2, M-1, or M-2 as 
determined by 
the director 

IND M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4, or 
AI 

PQ Any zoning classification 
P CF 

C. If a zoning classification is requested by the applicant for other than that described in subsection 
(B) of this section, the criteria of NMC 15.302.030 shall apply. This application shall be 
submitted concurrently with the annexation application. 

D. In the event that the annexation request is denied, the zone change request shall also be 
denied. [Ord. 2747 § 1 (Exh. A § 6), 9-6-11; Ord. 2720 § 1(9), 11-2-09; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. 
Code 2001 § 151.267.] 

APPLICANT'S  RESPONSE: 
The applicant is requesting that the property be zoned to R-1, Low Density Residential to 
match the existing development and zoning in the area. The R-1 zoning will allow the site to be 
developed with detached single family homes. Annexation of the property and zoning the land 
R-1 adds residential land to the city meeting the housing and land use goals of the 
Comprehensive Plan. The residential use is compatible and appropriate given surrounding 
residential, agricultural, and public facilities development.  

Attachment 4

39 of 328 



 

Newberg Annexation – 24950 NE North Valley Rd.  WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc. 

P a g e  | 7 

CONCLUSION 
 
As demonstrated with this narrative and the attached exhibits, the annexation of this property 
meets the applicable criteria and will benefit the City of Newberg. The applicant requests that 
the Planning Commission and City Council approve this application and refer this annexation 
on to the November 2016 general election ballot.  

Attachment 4

40 of 328 



 
 

 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 

Title Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 4

41 of 328 



STATUS OF RECORD TITLE REPORT
FDOR0546.rdw

Ticor Title Company of Oregon

 STATUS OF RECORD TITLE REPORT

1433 SW 6th Avenue, Portland, OR 97201
(503)646-4444  FAX: 

March 1, 2016

TO: Keller Williams Realty Portland Premier
Attn: Kelly Hagglund
215 N Blaine Street
Newberg, OR 97132

Title Number: 471816047899-TTMIDWIL18
Regarding: 24950 North Valley Road, Newberg, OR 97132

Property Address: 24950 North Valley Road
Newberg, Oregon 97132

County: Yamhill
DATED AS OF: February 26, 2016, 08:00-AM

PROPERTY

We have searched our Tract Indices as to the following described real property:

See Exhibit A Attached Hereto

VESTING

The First Baptist Church of Newberg, an Oregon non-profit corporation, which acquired title as Newberg First 
Baptist Church

RECORDED INFORMATION

Said property is subject to the following on record matter(s):

1. Rights of the public to any portion of the Land lying within streets, roads and highways.

2. Development Agreement with Consent to Annexation Agreement, including the terms and provisions 
thereof,

Executed by:  The First Baptist Church of Newberg and the City of Newberg
Recording Date:  July 8, 2003
Recording No.:  200316344

END OF EXCEPTIONS

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS / NOTES:

Attachment 4

42 of 328 

http://www.smartviewonline.net/smartbind?OrderDocument_GUID=ed5f4e77-c232-4a96-a4dc-d50896620afa
http://www.smartviewonline.net/smartbind?OrderDocument_GUID=c76da9d5-e1c2-44ae-b700-8557a50595ad


 STATUS OF RECORD TITLE REPORT
(Continued)

STATUS OF RECORD TITLE REPORT
FDOR0546.rdw

A. Note:  Property taxes for the fiscal year shown below are paid in full.

Fiscal Year:  2015-2016
Amount:  $1,688.33
Levy Code:  29.2
Account No.:  23334
Map No.:  R3207 00900

Prior to close of escrow, please contact the Tax Collector's Office to confirm all amounts owing, 
including current fiscal year taxes, supplemental taxes, escaped assessments and any 
delinquencies.

THIS REPORT IS TO BE UTILIZED FOR INFORMATION ONLY.
Any use of this report as a basis for transferring, encumbering or foreclosing the real property described will 
require payment in an amount equivalent to applicable title insurance premium as required by the rating 
schedule on file with the Oregon Insurance Division.

The liability for Ticor Title Company of Oregon is limited to the addressee and shall not exceed the $350.00 
paid hereunder.

Ticor Title Company of Oregon

Deborah Clark
deborah.clark@titlegroup.fntg.com

Attachment 4

43 of 328 

http://www.smartviewonline.net/smartbind?OrderDocument_GUID=e7bf0952-6580-4b2b-9ca2-5b81e6662b68


Order No.:  471816047899-TTMIDWIL18

EXHIBIT "A"

A tract of land in Yamhill County, Oregon, and being more particularly described as follows:

Being a part of the Donation Land Claim of James Morris and Lydia Morris, husband and wife, Notification No. 
478, Claim No. 46 in Section 7, Township 3 South, Range 2 West of the Willamette Meridian in said County 
and State, and more particularly described as beginning at a point 1467.16 feet South of the Northwest corner 
of said Donation Land Claim in Section 7 of said Township and Range, County and State, said point also being 
the Northwest corner of that tract of land described in Judgment, Antonia Crater vs. Ovy D. Pratt et ux, et al, in 
Circuit Court, Yamhill County, Oregon, Case No. 82-1390, in which Judgment was entered October 31, 1983; 
thence North 86°32'30" East 642.35 feet along a fence now there (July 1982), passing an iron rod at 30.06 
feet, to an iron rod; thence North 11.33 chains, more or less, to center of county road; thence South 86°20' 
West 9.72 chains, more or less, to a point exactly North of the true place of beginning of the tract herein 
described; and thence South 11.61 chains, more or less, to the true point of beginning.

Attachment 4

44 of 328 

http://www.smartviewonline.net/smartbind?OrderDocument_GUID=2e715a21-f1e8-4738-b6b5-0d8b6ef1a1a0


THIS MAP IS MADE SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSE OF ASSISTING IN LOCATING SAID PREMISES, AND THE COMPANY 

ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR VARIATIONS. IF ANY, IN DIMENSIONS, AREAS, AND LOCATIONS  AS CERTAINED BY 

ACTUAL SURVEY.                                                                                                                                                   

 

 
 
 

 

Attachment 4

45 of 328 



Attachment 4

46 of 328 



Attachment 4

47 of 328 



 
 

 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit B 

Map and Legal Description 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 4

48 of 328 



Vicinity Map 
24950 North Valley Rd 

Newberg, OR 

Site 

Attachment 4

49 of 328 



Attachment 4

50 of 328 



Attachment 4

51 of 328 



 
 

 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit C 

General Land Use Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 4

52 of 328 



General Land Use Plan 

Legend 

         Water Extension 

         Sewer Extension 

         Open Space 

         Single Family Lots 

         Street ROW’s 

Notes 
This site layout is conceptual 
and  representation of what 
could be developed on the site. 

 

Typical Lot size will range 
between 5,000 and 10,000 S.F. 

C
h

eh
al

em
 R

d
 

Crater  
Park 

Antonia Crater  
Elementary School 

Chehalem  
Valley Middle  

School 

Pedestrian 
Connection 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 NE North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc  

Attachment 4

53 of 328 



 
 

 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit D 

Development Concept Statement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 4

54 of 328 



 
 

 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc       1 
 
 
  

Development Concept Statement 

This annexation application requests that the site be annexed in with the R-1 

zoning. This zoning will allow the site to be developed with single family homes 

consistent with surrounding developments in the area. Current zoning regulations 

would allow the 10 acre site to be developed at approximately 6 to 7 lots per acre 

resulting in the potential to add 60 to 70 new homes to the site. 

Development of the site for single family residential would follow the City of 

Newberg’s Type II subdivision application process. All necessary requirements and 

improvements for the site would be made prior to final approval. Typical 

improvements will include new streets and sidewalks, extension of public utilities, 

and landscaping. A future connectivity plan has been included to ensure 

accessibility and connections are provided to existing and future development of 

the adjacent property. 

The inclusion of the site into the City of Newberg as residential will allow for 

development which is appropriate given the neighboring park and school 

facilities. The proximity of the site to an elementary and middle school will allow 

for pedestrian connections within a walkable area supporting the policies of the 

Comprehensive Plan.  

A pedestrian/bikeway connection can be provided to the existing recreational 

path at Crater Park which ties into the Antonia Crater Elementary and Chehalem 

Middle Schools. Street and pedestrian connection stubs to the east would 

connect future development of the adjacent property to a proposed pathway to 

the schools/park as shown on the concept pedestrian connection plan submitted 

with this application. 

Expected street improvements to Chehalem Dr. and North Valley Rd. frontages 

would bring these streets to City standards with the likely addition of bike lanes, 

sidewalks, and planting strips. 

 

Attachment 4

55 of 328 



 
 

 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit E 

Public Facilities Financing Statement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 4

56 of 328 



 
 

 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc       1 
 
 
  

Public Facilities Financing Statement 

The extension of public infrastructure and street improvements necessary to serve future 

development of the site will be financed through a combination of system development 

charges determined at the time of building permit applications, and on-site improvements 

constructed by the developer and conditioned via the land division approval process.  The 

developer will bear the cost of any on-site improvements necessary for the development of the 

property.  

 

Attachment 4

57 of 328 



 
 

 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit F 

Positive and Negative Effects Statement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 4

58 of 328 



 
 

 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 NE North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc       1 
 
 
  

Positive and Negative Effects Statement 

Consistent with the current Quasi-Public Comprehensive Plan designation of the property, this 

annexation application requests that the site be annexed into the City of Newberg and that R-1 

zoning be applied upon annexation. This zoning will allow the site to be developed with 

detached single family homes consistent with surrounding developments in the area. Current 

zoning regulations would allow the approximately 10 acre site to be developed at roughly 6 to 7 

lots per acre, resulting in the potential to add 60 to 70 new homes to the site. 

Positive Effects 

At a macro level, the annexation of the property into the City of Newberg will add new land for 

low density residential development, upholding the policies of the City Comprehensive Plan, 

which highlights a need for increased residential zoning within the City to meet the projected 

population growth.  

The annexation and development of this site will also increase the City’s jurisdiction for tax 

purposes and development review. Future development of the property will be required to be 

reviewed and approved through the City’s Development process ensuring it meets applicable 

site development and zoning requirements.   

At a micro level, the annexation and development of the site with detached single family homes 

will be consistent with the current development pattern in the surrounding area. A residential 

development will be harmonious and beneficial to adjacent residences, as well as Crater Park 

and Chehalem Valley Middle School and Antonia Crater Elementary School. 

Annexation of the site will result in the City regulating future development, including the site’s 

connection to surrounding properties. One major benefit will be the City’s ability to ensure that 

pedestrian connections are provided to Crater Park, as well as Chehalem Valley Middle School 

and Antonia Crater Elementary School, which are adjacent to the site’s southern property line.   

Negative Effects   

An increase in population in the area with a new residential development will put an increased 

demand on infrastructure and city services. Traffic in the immediate vicinity will increase and 

new residents will add to the school population. Additionally, the development will require 

water and sewerage service to the site, and the existing open space of the site will become 

housing. 

 

Attachment 4

59 of 328 



 
 

 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 NE North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc       2 
 
 
  

Mitigation 

In order to mitigate the effects of annexation of the property, applicable City code and 

development standards will condition needed infrastructure improvements. Any required 

future infrastructure improvements for the site will be reviewed and determined through the 

future subdivision process. Anticipated improvements will include the extension of water and 

sewage facilities to the site, street improvements and stormwater management. 

Sewer 

Provided with this annexation application is a memo from Westlake Consultants’ Engineering 

division which addresses the ability of this property to be connected to the existing sewer 

infrastructure in the area via an upgrade to the existing sanitary sewer pump station on 

Chehalem Road south of the property.  

Water 

Water service is available and can be extended to the site along with stubs to provide for future 

development of neighboring properties, as well as the ability to loop the system. 

Streets and Pedestrian Connections 

Chehalem Drive and NE North Valley Road would have roadway frontage improvements 

including the dedication of any additional Right of Way needed along the property’s frontages. 

Construction of half-street improvements to the frontages along both rights-of-way would be to 

City standards. Future development may also include a sidewalk extension on the east side of 

Chehalem Drive, south to Foothills Drive. 

A pedestrian connection to the existing recreational path at Crater Park may also be considered 

at the time of future development.  This connection would provide a pedestrian/bicycle route 

to the schools that can be tied into future developments of the adjacent parcels. The major 

benefit would be a pedestrian route separated from major streets that follows the principles of 

the Safe Routes to Schools Program. 

Schools 

The Newberg School District has stated that school capacity at the affected schools would not 

be an issue for the potential 60 to 70 home development at the site. 

 

 

Attachment 4

60 of 328 



 
 

 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 NE North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc       3 
 
 
  

Conclusion 

The annexation of the site and R-1 zoning as requested will provide the City of Newberg the 

ability to regulate the type of development that occurs on the site. It will increase the amount 

of residential acreage within the City; meeting goals of the Comprehensive Plan. Any negative 

effects of the development to the community will be mitigated. Furthermore, the positive 

benefits of this annexation clearly outweigh the negative effects. 

Attachment 4

61 of 328 



 
 

 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit G 

Concept Pedestrian Connection Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 4

62 of 328 



Concept Pedestrian Connection Plan 

Legend 
  

         Future Bike Lanes 

 

         Road and Pedestrian Connections 

 

         Pedestrian Connections 

Site 

Notes 
All connections shown are 
conceptual. City standards and 
requirements during the 
subdivision process would 
stipulate the actual 
connections and locations. 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 NE North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc  

Attachment 4

63 of 328 



 
 

 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit H 

Memo for Sewer Availability 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 4

64 of 328 



 

 

Pacific Corporate Center  15115 sw sequoia parkway, suite 150 
 tigard, oregon   97224 

www.westlakeconsultants.com      PH – 503-684-0652     FX – 503-624-0157 

 
PLANNING ENGINEERING SURVEYING 
 

March 4, 2016 
 
 
City of Newberg  
Planning Department 
414 E. 1st St.  
Newberg, OR 97132 
 
RE:  Memo for Sewer Availability – Proposed Annexation of 24950 NE North Valley 

Road, Newberg OR 97132 (Tax Map R3207, Tax Lot 00900) 
 
To the City of Newberg: 
 
The purpose of this memorandum is to address the availability of municipal sanitary sewer 
service to the subject property. Documents reviewed include:  

 City of Newberg Preliminary Engineer’s Report for Crater Lane LID, dated December 
2001.  

 City of Newberg Technical Memorandum Regarding Parcels Adjacent to Crater Lane 
LID, dated February 18, 2002.  

 City of Newberg Chehalem Drive Pump Station Project Summary, dated May 9, 
2003.  

 GIS Mapping available on the City of Newberg Website.  
 

The subject property is located approximately 2,600 feet north of the Chehalem Drive pump 
station on Chehalem Drive. The pump station is located approximately 1,300 feet south of 
Foothills Drive. An existing gravity sewer that drains to the pump station is located 
approximately 1,300 feet south of the subject property. The proposed annexation site 
consisting of approximately 10.37 acres could be served by an extension of the gravity 
sanitary sewer line in Chehalem Drive. An extension of the gravity sanitary sewer line is 
anticipated to occur at the time of development of the subject property.  
 
According to the City of Newberg Chehalem Drive Pump Station Project Summary, dated 
May 9, 2003, the pump station pump capacity is 630 gpm with a peak design flow of 554 
gpm. The design flow of 554 gpm is consistent with the design flow stated in the City of 
Newberg Preliminary Engineer’s Report for Crater Lane LID, dated December 2001. A 
design flow of 554 gpm compared to the pump capacity of 630 gpm indicates that there is 
an available additional capacity of 72 gpm at the Chehalem Drive Pump Station. The City of 
Newberg Technical Memorandum Regarding Parcels Adjacent to Crater Lane LID, dated 
February 18, 2002 indicates that seven parcels north of the LID could be served by the 
Crater Lane LID (Chehalem Drive) pump station, provided there was an extension of the 
gravity sewer in Chehalem Drive and a larger capacity pump were installed. No changes to 
the pump station wet well depth were anticipated to serve adjacent lots to the north.  
 
The subject property is the western most of the seven lots referenced in the Technical 
Memorandum of February 18, 2002, utilizing design assumptions listed in the referenced 
City of Newberg documents, the approximately 10.37 acre site proposed for annexation 
could yield approximately 50 to 55 lots when developed. Utilizing these design assumptions 
preliminary estimates are for sanitary sewer flows from the developed site to be 60 to 65 

Attachment 4

65 of 328 



 

 

Pacific Corporate Center  15115 sw sequoia parkway, suite 150 
 tigard, oregon   97224 

www.westlakeconsultants.com      PH – 503-684-0652     FX – 503-624-0157 

 
PLANNING ENGINEERING SURVEYING 
 

gpm with an available capacity of 72 gpm at the Chehalem Drive Pump Station. Thus, based 
on the design assumptions listed in the referenced 2002 and 2003 documents, the 
Chehalem Drive Pump Station could accommodate the subject site without major 
modifications. Utilizing a more current density ratio the subject site could yield to 60 to 70 
lots when developed. Preliminary estimates are for sanitary sewer flows from the developed 
site with a potential 60 to 70 lots to be 65 to 80 gpm. Development of the site at the 
current density ratio yielding more lots than anticipated in the City of Newberg Technical 
Memorandum Regarding Parcels Adjacent to Crater Lane LID, dated February 18, 2002, 
would likely require an upgraded pump size to be installed at the Chehalem Drive Pump 
Station.  
 
At the time of development of the subject property a detailed analysis of the pump station’s 
available capacity and developed sanitary sewer flows from the subject site is anticipated as 
part of infrastructure designs. At that time, a final determination of any needed upgrade in 
pump size could be made based on the final lot count at the time of development.  
 
Sincerely,  
WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, INC.  

 
Brett Musick, PE 
Project Manager  
 
BEM/mrd 
 
 

Attachment 4

66 of 328 



 
 

 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit I 

Measure 49 Waiver 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 4

67 of 328 



Attachment 4

68 of 328 



Attachment 4

69 of 328 



 
 

 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit J 

Annexation Consent Forms 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 4

70 of 328 



Attachment 4

71 of 328 



Attachment 4

72 of 328 



 
 

 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit K 

Annexation Form 

Attachment 4

73 of 328 



Attachment 4

74 of 328 



 
 

 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit L 

Transportation Planning Rule Consistency 

 

Attachment 4

75 of 328 



 
 

 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc       1 
 
 
  

Transportation Planning Rule Consistency 

In determination of the effect of the Newberg First Baptist Church annexation of 10-
acres on the City transportation system, analysis of the Transportation Planning Rule 
must be completed.  
 
Division 12 of the Statewide Planning Goals implements planning regulations. 
Specifically, Oregon Administrative Rules (“OAR”) Section 660-012-0060 stipulates 
requirements for plan and land use regulation amendments which include annexations.  
 
After review of OAR 660-012-0060, the following subsection is found applicable to the 
annexation request for this property with text shown in italics. The applicant’s findings 
are shown in bold. 
 
OAR 660-012-0060 

(9) Notwithstanding section (1) of this rule, a local government may find that an 
amendment to a zoning map does not significantly affect an existing or planned 
transportation facility if all of the following requirements are met. 
(a) The proposed zoning is consistent with the existing comprehensive plan map 

designation and the amendment does not change the comprehensive plan map; 
 
Applicant Response: 
Facts: The current Newberg Comprehensive Plan map designated the Newberg 
Baptist Church property as Public/Quasi Public (“PQ”). As per Section 15.250.080 
of the City of Newberg Municipal Code, property designated PQ is to be assigned 
any requested zoning designation when annexing into the City. To be consistent 
with existing City zoning in the surrounding area, this applicant is requesting and 
proposing R1, low density residential. 
 
Finding: The zoning proposed through this annexation application is consistent 
with the existing Newberg Comprehensive Plan and does not change the 
Comprehensive Plan map. This requirement is met. 
  

(b) The local government has an acknowledged TSP and the proposed zoning is 
consistent with the TSP; and 

 
Applicant Response: 
Facts: Attached are copies of pages from the Newberg Transportation System 
Plan (“TSP”), one is a Street System map depicting the subject property 
designated within an Urban Reserve Area (“URA”) and the other page is from TSP 
Section 3.2 confirming that the TSP study area includes URA. As addressed 
herein above, the requested proposed R1 zoning is consistent with the TSP. 
 
Finding: The City of Newberg has an acknowledged TSP dated June 2005. The 
subject property proposed zoning is consistent with the TSP. This requirement is 
met.  

Attachment 4

76 of 328 



 
 

 

Newberg Annexation– 24950 North Valley Rd.   WESTLAKE CONSULTANTS, Inc       2 
 
 
  

(c) The area subject to the zoning map amendment was not exempted from this rule at 
the time of an urban growth boundary amendment as permitted in OAR 660-024-
0020(1)(d), or the area was exempted from this rule but the local government has a 
subsequently acknowledged TSP amendment that accounted for urbanization of the 
area. 
 
Applicant Response: 
Facts: Attached is a copy of City of Newberg Ordinance #2006-2661, an ordinance 
approved by the Newberg City Council amending the Urban Growth Boundary 
(UGB). This ordinance includes the subject property and approval placing the 
subject property within the Newberg UGB. As stated in the approval Justification 
Report, Pages 32 and 49 attached, transportation impacts for Urban Reserve 
Areas, including the subject property, were reviewed and found to be consistent 
with the TPR requirements upon adoption of Ordinance #2006-2661. 
 
Finding: The subject property was not exempted from the TPR rule at the time of 
Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) amendment approval. This requirement is met. 
 
 
Based upon satisfaction of the above TPR requirements, this annexation application of 
10-acres into the City of Newberg does not significantly affect the existing or planned 
transportation system. As contained within this application submittal, future 
development of the property at R1 zoning will involve an estimated 60-70 single family 
detached residential houses which are estimated at 10 trips per day per residential 
house. Future development of the subject property will be required to provide a traffic 
study assessing affected intersections (e.g. levels of service, traffic volumes, sight 
distance, etc.). Future development will be required to dedication additional right-of-
way meeting TSP requirements along the subject property’s Chehalem Drive and North 
Valley Road frontages. Further, future development will be required to construct 
frontage improvements to these same two frontages. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 4

77 of 328 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment A 

Newberg Transportation Systems Plan Excerpt 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 4

78 of 328 



June 2005   
Newberg Transportation System Plan  Existing Conditions 

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.  18 

 
Transportation is one of the most important aspects of the economic viability and livability for a 
city.  The City of Newberg is situated approximately 25 miles to the south and west of Portland and 
has experienced a population increase from 10,400 in 1980 to approximately 18,100 in 2000, an 
annual average growth rate of 3.7%.  The growth of Newberg has placed increased demands on 
transportation modes in, and around the City.  This section provides a summary of the existing 
transportation system conditions within the Newberg urban area. 

This section describes the existing condition of the City’s transportation system, covering the 
highway, pedestrian, bicycle, transit, rail, air, water, freight movement, and pipeline/transmission 
transportation modes. Each mode’s current performance and deficiencies are described. Also 
included is an inventory of existing transportation facilities. The findings of this existing conditions 
analysis serve as a baseline to which future conditions can be compared. 

This section is a fact-finding document, in that it describes existing conditions, but does not 
recommend solutions to identified problems. Its findings will be combined with the findings of two 
other sections (plan and policy review, and future conditions) to provide a comprehensive overview 
of Newberg’s transportation needs. Once this complete set of needs has been identified, subsequent 
sections will describe solution alternatives developed to meet these needs. 

 
Figure 3-1 is a street map of Newberg as of May 2004 and its immediate vicinity, with the city 
limits and Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) indicated. The base map used in Figure 3-1 and other 
maps included in this chapter provide a reference for locating other features of Newberg’s 
transportation system.  They do not depict the condition or public status of a particular roadway. 
The study area for the TSP generally consists of the area within the UGB and the Urban Reserve 
Area (URA), although in some instances areas outside the study area are also addressed, where 
transportation issues extend beyond the City.  

Based on the requirements of Oregon’s Transportation Planning Rule, only significant streets within 
the study area—those that can be classified as arterials or collectors—and intersections of these 
streets are generally addressed.  Local street issues such as street connectivity and safety issues are 
also discussed where appropriate. Local traffic and safety issues on other roadways will be 
addressed in subsequent chapters through the primary analysis of the public involvement process, 
while the future conditions chapter presents a more extensive analysis of Newberg’s development 
potential. However, because of the requirements of Oregon’s Transportation Planning Rule, the TSP 
will only consider those areas currently within the City’s planning area boundary (i.e., those areas 
currently covered by the City’s comprehensive plan) when making assumptions about where 
Newberg will grow in the next 20-25 years. 

Attachment 4

79 of 328 



Attachment 4

80 of 328 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment B 

Urban Growth Boundary Expansion Excerpt 

 

 

Attachment 4

81 of 328 



ORDINANCE No. 2006-2661 

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TO 

ADD APPROXIMATELY 200 ADDITIONAL ... ~ ... ,.._.,._., AND APPLYING THE 

FOLLOWING COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATIONS: PQ 
LDR (Low 

LDR/lA (LOW DENSITY 1 UNIT PER 

DENSITY RESIDENTIAL), AND HDR (HIGH 

RESIDENTIAL) 

RECITALS: 

1. On July 21, 2005, the Newberg City Council adopted Resolution 2005-2590, initiating 
amendments to the Newberg Comprehensive Plan and Development Code, generally as 
described in the recommendations of the Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg's Future, and 
directed City staff to undertake the activities needed to initiate and support a number of 
actions for the City to consider these amendments. 

2. Consistent with Paragraph 2.c. of Resolution 2005-2590, City staff held neighborhood 
meetings in each general area that the Committee had recommended for addition to the 
Urban Growth Boundary to define specific boundaries, and is proceeding with the hearings 
process to create a new Urban Growth Boundary. 

3. After proper notice, on September 21, 2006 a hearing was held by the Newberg Urban 
Area Management Commission on a specific proposal to amend the Newberg Urban 
Growth Boundary in the north and west. The Commission recommended approval of the 
urban growth boundary amendment, and recommended that the amendment areas be 
designated a combination ofPQ (Public/Quasi-Public), LDR (Low Density Residential), 
LDR/1A (Low Density Residential, 1 unit per acre), ~1DR (Medium Density Residential), 
and HDR (High Density Residential). This area includes portions of Chehalem Creek as 
mapped and described in the June 2006 "Water Features Inventory" report appendix to the 
''Justification and Findings Report" (Exhibit "C"). 

4. City Council held a hearing to 

5. 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

1. lS 

Attachment 4

82 of 328 



,., 
-'· 

4. The findings which are attached as are incorporated herein. 

5. This ordinance is subject to adoption of the same Urban Growth Boundary and 
Comprehensive Plan changes by Yamhill County. 

? EFFECTIVE DATE of this ordinance is 30 days after the adoption date, which is: December 6, 2006. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City ofNewberg, Oregon, this day of November, 
2006, by the following votes: 

AYE: NAY: ABSENT: ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST by the fviayor this 

2 

Attachment 4

83 of 328 



 
EXHIBIT “A” 

LIST OF TAX LOTS 
UGB-05-011 

 
 
 

 

LDR1A LDR MDR HDR PQ 

3218CD 00205 3218BA 00400 3218BD 00900 3207   04100 3218CA 01900 3207   00900
3218CD 00206 3218BA 00301 3218BD 00800 3207   04000 3218CA 01800 3208   02701
3218CD 00202 3218BA 00700 3218BD 00702 3207   03900 3218CA 01700 3208   02802
3218CD 00203 3207   00300 3218BD 00700 3218AB 01401  3208   02800
3218CD 00204 3207   00600 3218BD 00701 3218AB 01500  3208   02801
3218CD 00211 3207   00700 3218BA 00900 3218AB 01600  3208   02703
3218CD 00210 3207   00800 3218BA 00800 3218AB 01700  3208   02702
3218CD 00209 3207   00400 3218BA 00600 3218AB 01701  3208   02700
3218CD 00220 3207   00500 3218BA 00500 3218AB 01702   
3218CD 00200 3218BD 00200 3218BA 00302 3218CD 01000   
3218CD 00208 3218BD 00100 3218BA 00303 3218CD 01400   
3218CD 00201 3218BD 00500 3218BA 00304 3218CD 00702   
3219BB 00102 3218BD 01000 3218BA 00300 3218CD 00700   
3219BB 00101 3218BD 00401 3218BA 00100 3218CD 00701   
3219BB 00100 3218BD 00600 3218BA 00101 3218CD 00900   
3218CD 00218 3218CA 02500 3218BA 00200 3218CD 01100   
3218CD 00217 3218CA 02400 3208   02900 3218CD 01200   
3218CD 00219 3218CA 02300 3218CA 02201 3218CD 01300   
3218CD 00214 3218CA 02100 3218CA 02200 3218CD 01600   
3218CD 00215 3218CA 02000 3218BD 00403 3218CD 00300   
3218CD 00216 3218CA 03300 3218BD 00402    
3218CD 00213 3218CA 03400 3218BD 00400    
3218CD 00207 3218CA 03200 3218BD 00300    

 3218CA 03100 3218BD 00301    
 3218CA 03500 3218CA 02800    
 3218CA 03000 3218CA 02801    
 3218CA 02900    
 3218CA 02700    
 3218CA 02600    
 3218BD 01100    
     
      

 
Note:  Some parcels may be only partially in the amendment area.  See map. 

 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2006-2660 
K:\WP\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.UGB\2005\UGB 05-011 NORTHWEST\NORTHWEST UGB ORDINANCE.DOC PAGE 3 

Attachment 4

84 of 328 



 

Exhibit “B” 
Newberg Comprehensive Plan Designations 

 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2006-2660 
K:\WP\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.UGB\2005\UGB 05-011 NORTHWEST\NORTHWEST UGB ORDINANCE.DOC PAGE 4 

Attachment 4

85 of 328 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2006-2660 
K:\WP\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.UGB\2005\UGB 05-011 NORTHWEST\NORTHWEST UGB ORDINANCE.DOC PAGE 5 

 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit “C” 
 
 

Please see “Northwest Newberg 2006 UGB Expansion,  
Justification & Findings Report,”  

City of Newberg, Oregon, August 3, 2006 
(provided as a separately bound document) 

 
 
 

Attachment 4

86 of 328 



 
 

 
 

NORTHWEST NEWBERG 
 

2006 UGB EXPANSION 
 

JUSTIFICATION & FINDINGS REPORT  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Newberg, Oregon 
Adopted November 6, 2006 

  
 

Attachment 4

87 of 328 



 

In evaluating alternative areas for possible inclusion in the UGB, these factors require 
consideration of each Urban Reserve Area’s relative serviceability and efficiency in 
accommodating identified land needs.  The City of Newberg determined which Urban Reserve 
Areas could be most efficiently developed for identified land needs and economically provided 
with public facilities and services.   
 

Transportation System Extension 

In 2005, the Newberg City Council adopted the Newberg Transportation System Plan 
(TSP).25  The findings adopting the TSP addressed Statewide Planning Goal 14 – 
Urbanization as follows: 
 

Statewide Goal 14: Urbanization 
To provide for an orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban land use. 
Finding: The study area for the TSP update includes the Newberg Urban Growth Boundary and 
Urban Reserve areas. In order to provide an orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban 
land use, a comprehensive transportation plan is necessary. This plan provides that 
comprehensive system. Small segments of a few transportation facilities are currently shown on 
rural lands, which are not currently under the jurisdiction of Newberg. These facilities are not 
planned to accommodate any urban uses outside Urban Growth Boundaries. Any such 
recommended improvements will need to be coordinated with Yamhill County. All the facilities 
can be approved without an exception to Goal 14, as stated in the findings addressing Goal 3 
above. Thus, the plan is consistent with Goal 14. 

 
Thus, the TSP specifically addressed transportation impacts resulting from planned 
development within the 2004 UGB plus the 1995 URA.  Map 5, Transportation Systems Plan 
for UGB Expansion Areas (2005)26, shows Chehalem Drive, North Valley Road, Foothills 
Drive, College Street, Main Street, Columbia Drive, Highway 240 (Illinois Street), and Aspen 
Way as the primary collector and arterial street system serving the 2006 UGB Expansion 
Areas.  
 
Section 6.2 of the TSP identifies the intersection improvements necessary to accommodate 
increased traffic resulting in part from anticipated development within the 2006 UGB 
Expansion Areas.  Specific transportation projects identified in the TSP include substantial 
improvements to Main Street, Chehalem Drive, Oregon Highway 240, Illinois Street, 
Columbia Drive, College Street and Foothill Drive.  With these improvements, the local and 
state transportation system will have the capacity to accommodate planned development 
within the 2004 UGB and the 2006 UGB Expansion Areas. 
 
Efficiency and Serviceability 

Newberg Public Works evaluated the cost of extending sewer, water, and storm drainage 
services to each of the Urban Reserve Areas. (See Newberg Urban Reserve Area Public 
Facilities Cost Estimates, Planning and Building Department (2006).)   

                                            
25 See Ordinance 2005-2619. 

26 This map is identified as Figure 6-1, Functional Classification Plan, in the adopted Newberg TSP. 

 
 

Newberg UGB Justification Report · City of Newberg · Page 32 
 

Attachment 4

88 of 328 



 

D. AGRICULTURAL LANDS GOAL STATEMENT  

 

 

1. To conserve Yamhill County's farm lands for the production of crops and livestock and to 
ensure that the conversion of farm land to urban use where necessary and appropriate 
occurs in an orderly and economical manner.  

Proposed Findings 

Goal 14 – Urbanization and ORS 197.298 balance the competing land needs of agriculture 
and forestry on the one hand, and future urban growth on the other.  Goal 14 requires that 
cities provide enough land for 20-year growth needs.  ORS 197.298 defines land within 
URAs as the “highest priority” for expanding urban growth boundaries to meet 20-year land 
needs.  Since Newberg is expanding almost exclusively on high priority URA land, the 
agricultural policies listed above are met.  Agricultural lands are not affected by the decision 
to expand into the Aspen Estates rural residential exception areas, because (a) exception 
areas are not defined as “agricultural land,” and (b) none of the lots included within the 
UGB abut agricultural land. 

 
E. TRANSPORTATION GOAL STATEMENT  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

1. To provide and encourage an efficient, safe, convenient and economic transportation and 
communication system, including road, rail, waterways, public transit and air, to serve the 
needs of existing and projected urban and rural development within the county, as well as to 
accommodate the regional movement of people and goods and the transfer of energy, 
recognizing the economic, social and energy impacts of the various modes of transportation. 

Policies 

e. Yamhill County will cooperate with and support the State Highway Division, the Mid-
Willamette Valley Council of Governments, and any other county or regional 
transportation agency in an effort to establish a viable and productive regional 
transportation planning process and operations system geared to identifying, prioritizing 
and resolving both present and future transportation needs, with special reference to our 
county and regional network.   

k. All county transportation-related decisions will be made in particular consideration of 
energy efficiency and conservation.  

o. All transportation-related decisions will be made in support of the efficient and economic 
movement of people, goods, and services throughout the region, and will be based on 
the location and adequacy of facilities for such goods and services. 

Proposed Findings 

The 2005 Newberg TSP addresses transportation impacts resulting from development within 
the 2004 UGB plus all URAs adopted by the City and County in 1995.   
 

 
 

Newberg UGB Justification Report · Winterbrook Planning · Page 49 
 

 

Attachment 4

89 of 328 



Attachment 5

90 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates annexation\PC staff report ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates.doc 

    Community Development Department 
       P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132 

       503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

COLUMBIA ESTATES ANNEXATION/ZONE CHANGE 

 

HEARING DATE: May 12, 2016 

FILE NO:  ANX-16-003  

REQUEST: Annex 3.06 acres of property, plus the area of the adjacent rights-of-way, into the 

Newberg city limits and change the zoning from Yamhill County VLDR-1 to 

Newberg R-2. 

LOCATION: North of Columbia Dr., south of Lynn Drive/Heritage Way 

TAX LOT: 3218AB-1700, -1701, -1702 

APPLICANT: Del Boca Vista, LLC 

OWNER: Jo Dacklin (tax lots -1700, -1701), Richard & Merilee Lee (tax lot -1702) 

PLAN DISTRICT: MDR (medium density residential) 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Planning Commission Resolution 2016-319 with: 

 Exhibit “A”:  Property Map 

 Exhibit “B”:  Legal Description 

 Exhibit “C”:  Findings 

1. Aerial Photo  

2. Concept Development Plan 

3. Comprehensive Plan Map 

4. Zoning Map 

5. Comments 

6. Application 
 

91 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates annexation\PC staff report ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates.doc 

A. DESCRIPTION OF APPLICATION:   The proposed annexation is for three parcels 

totaling 3.06 acres, located north of Columbia Drive and south of Lynn Drive/Heritage Way.  

The properties are located within the Newberg urban growth boundary and have a Newberg 

Comprehensive Plan designation of MDR (medium density residential). The annexation 

would change the zoning of the properties from Yamhill County VLDR-1 to Newberg R-2 

(medium density residential).  The R-2 zone has a minimum lot size of 3,000 square feet for 

future residential development. The applicant’s concept development plan shows a 

subdivision for single-family homes, with primarily 3,000 square foot lots. The concept 

development plan is not binding on the applicant, and does not approve a subdivision for the 

property, but the subdivision concept does meet the minimum lot size standard in the R-2 zone 

and shows how the site could potentially be developed. 

B. LOCATION MAP 

 

C. SITE INFORMATION: 

1. Location:  North of Columbia Drive, south of Lynn Drive/Heritage Way. West and 

south of the current Newberg city limits.  

2. Size: 3 lots, totaling approximately 3.06 acres (3.2 acres including adjacent right-of-

way to centerline of Columbia Drive).  

3. Topography: The property has a slight slope to the south. 

4. Current Land Uses: Vacant fields. 

92 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates annexation\PC staff report ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates.doc 

5. Natural Features: The site is primarily grass fields, with scattered trees and shrubs. 

6. Adjacent Land Uses: 

a. North: single-family homes (R-2, on typically 5,000 sf lots) 

b. East: single-family homes (R-2, on approx. 6,000 sf lots) 

c. South: rural residential (outside city limits) 

d. West: rural residential (outside city limits) 

7. Access and Transportation: The property is currently undeveloped, but has frontage on 

both Lynn Drive and Columbia Drive. Columbia Drive is under Yamhill County 

Jurisdiction and Lynn Drive is under the City of Newberg jurisdiction. 

8. Utilities:  

a. There is an 8-inch public water line that is located in Lynn Drive that could be 

extended South through the property to serve the site. 

b. There is an 8-inch public wastewater line that is located in Lynn Drive that 

could be extended South through the property to serve the site. 

c. Stormwater: The current site is an open field of a pervious nature. The 

applicant must comply with the stormwater requirements of the municipal code 

and PW Design and Construction Standards Manual in effect at the time of site 

development.  Stormwater currently flows north to south where it meets with a 

Yamhill County roadside ditch along Columbia Drive. 

d. As required by the Newberg Municipal Code and at the time of site 

development, the applicant shall install all overhead utilities underground.  

 

D. PROCESS:  An annexation and zone change request is a Type III application and follows the 

procedures in Newberg Development Code 15.100.050.  The Planning Commission will hold 

a quasi-judicial hearing on the application.  The Commission makes a recommendation on the 

application based on the criteria listed in the attached findings.  The Planning Commission’s 

recommendation is forwarded to the City Council, who will hold a hearing and render a final 

decision on the application. State law recently changed with the passage and adoption of 

Oregon Senate Bill 1573, which added language to ORS 222.111 preempting Newberg’s 

requirement that annexations go to a public vote, and instead directs the legislative body of a 

city to annex property without a public vote when the property meets certain requirements. 

Important dates related to this application are as follows: 

4/18/16: The Community Development Director deemed the application complete. 

 4/18/16: The applicant mailed notice to the property owners within 500 feet of the site and 

posted the site. 

4/27/16: The Newberg Graphic published notice of the Planning Commission hearing. 

 5/12/16: The Planning Commission will hold a quasi-judicial hearing to consider the 

application. 

E. AGENCY COMMENTS:  The application was routed to several public agencies for review 

and comment.  Comments and recommendations from city departments have been 

incorporated into the findings and conditions.  As of the writing of this report, the city 

received the following agency comments:  

93 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates annexation\PC staff report ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates.doc 

PGE: Reviewed, no conflict.  

Newberg School District:  Reviewed; no conflict.  

F. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  As of the writing of this report, the city has received no written 

public comments.   

G. ANALYSIS:   

1. The proposed annexation site is adjacent to city limits, and is within the Newberg 

urban growth boundary. The requested R-2 zoning corresponds with the existing MDR 

(medium density residential) Comprehensive Plan designation.  

2. One issue facing this application was determining whether adequate public utilities can 

serve the site within three years.  City water and sewer lines are currently in place 

along Lynn Drive, which could be used to serve the site.  The sanitary sewer line flows 

to the Highway 240 Pump Station.  A very preliminary assessment provided by the 

applicant’s engineer has determined that the pump station could serve the additional 

flows contributed by this development.  If necessary, upgrades to the pump station 

could be completed by the developer to provide the capacity needed.  The site 

stormwater management would be designed to comply with the stormwater 

requirements of the municipal code and public works design and construction 

standards manual in effect at the time of site development.  A permit from Yamhill 

County will be required for any connections to the ditch along Columbia Drive. 

3. Transportation:  The site is north of Columbia Drive, and south of Lynn 

Drive/Heritage Way. Columbia Drive is classified in the TSP as a minor collector, and 

Lynn Drive & Heritage Way are both local residential streets. Street improvements to 

both frontages will be required at the time of development.  Yamhill County Permits 

are required for improvements to Columbia Drive. 

4. State law recently changed with the passage and adoption of Oregon Senate Bill 1573, 

which added language to ORS 222.111 preempting Newberg’s (and other cities) 

requirement that annexations go to a public vote, and instead directs the legislative body 

of a city to annex property without a public vote when the property meets certain 

requirements, including: being within the urban growth boundary; subject to the 

Comprehensive Plan of the city; contiguous to city limits; and meeting the city’s adopted 

Development Code criteria for annexation. This property meets those criteria as outlined 

in the findings in Exhibit “C” and will not be sent to a public vote. The City Council will 

make the final local decision on this application for annexation.  

H. PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  The preliminary staff recommendation 

is made in the absence of public hearing testimony, and may be modified subsequent to the 

close of the public hearing.  At this writing, staff recommends the following motion: 

 Move to adopt Planning Commission Resolution 2016-319, which recommends that the City 

Council approve the requested annexation and zone change.

94 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates annexation\PC staff report ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates.doc 

 PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 2016-319 

A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE AN ANNEXATION OF 3.06  

ACRES OF PROPERTY, PLUS THE AREA OF THE ADJACENT RIGHTS-OF-WAY, INTO THE CITY OF 

NEWBERG AND CHANGE THE ZONING FROM YAMHILL COUNTY VLDR-1 TO NEWBERG R-2, FOR 

PROPERTY LOCATED NORTH OF COLUMBIA DRIVE, SOUTH OF LYNN DRIVE, YAMHILL COUNTY 

TAX LOTS 3218AB-1700, -1701, AND -1702 

RECITALS 

1. Del Boca Vista, LLC submitted an application to annex 3.06 acres of property, plus the area of the 

adjacent rights-of-way, into the City of Newberg and change the zoning from Yamhill County 

VLDR-1 to Newberg R-2. The R-2 zoning is consistent with the adopted MDR (medium density 

residential) Comprehensive Plan designation on the site. The property is located directly west and 

south of the current Newberg city limits, north of Columbia Drive, south of Lynn Drive, on 

Yamhill County tax lots 3218AB-1700, -1701, and -1702.  

2. After proper notice, the Newberg Planning Commission held a hearing on May 12, 2016, to 

consider the application.  The Commission considered testimony, and deliberated. 

3. The Newberg Planning Commission finds that the application meets the applicable Newberg 

Development Code criteria as shown in the findings in Exhibit “C”. 

4. State law recently changed with the passage and adoption of Oregon Senate Bill 1573, which 

added language to ORS 222.111 that preempts Newberg’s requirement that annexations go to a 

public vote, and instead directs the legislative body of a city to annex property without a public 

vote when the property meets certain requirements, including: being within the urban growth 

boundary; subject to the Comprehensive Plan of the city; contiguous to city limits; and meeting 

the city’s adopted Development Code criteria for annexation. This property meets those criteria. 

The Newberg Planning Commission resolves as follows: 

1. The Planning Commission recommends that the City Council annex the property shown in 

Exhibit “A” and described in Exhibit “B”, along with a zone change to R-2, and withdraw the 

property from the Newberg Rural Fire Protection District.  Exhibits "A" and “B” are hereby 

adopted and by this reference incorporated. 

2. This recommendation is based on the findings shown in Exhibit “C”.  Exhibit "C" is hereby 

adopted and by this reference incorporated. 

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this 12th day of May, 2016. 

        ATTEST: 

 

Planning Commission Chair     Planning Commission Secretary 

95 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates annexation\PC staff report ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates.doc 

Exhibit “A” to Planning Commission Resolution No. 2016-319 

Annexation Map – Columbia Estates 

96 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates annexation\PC staff report ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates.doc 

Exhibit “B” to Planning Commission Resolution No. 2016-319 

Legal Description – Columbia Estates Annexation 
 

 

 

97 of 328 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates annexation\PC staff report ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates.doc 

Exhibit “C” to Planning Commission Resolution No. 2016-319 

Findings –File ANX-16-003 – Columbia Estates 

A. 15.250.020 Conditions for annexation. 

The following conditions must be met prior to or concurrent with city processing of 

any annexation request: 

A. The subject site must be located within the Newberg urban growth boundary or 

Newberg urban reserve areas. 

B. The subject site must be contiguous to the existing city limits. 

Finding:  The proposed annexation site, located on Yamhill County tax lots 3218AB-1700, -1701, 

and -1702, is within the Newberg urban growth boundary and contiguous to the existing city limits 

on its north boundary and most of its east boundary. The legal description of the area to be annexed 

extends to the centerline of the Columbia Drive right-of-way, which provides for future continuity of 

the city limits.  This criterion is met.  

B. 15.250.030 Quasi-judicial annexation criteria. 

The following criteria shall apply to all annexation requests: 

A. The proposed use for the site complies with the Newberg comprehensive plan 

and with the designation on the Newberg comprehensive plan map. If a 

redesignation of the plan map is requested concurrent with annexation, the uses 

allowed under the proposed designation must comply with the Newberg 

comprehensive plan. 

Finding: The property has a Comprehensive Plan designation of MDR (Medium Density 

Residential), which corresponds with the requested zoning of R-2 (Medium Density Residential). 

The R-2 zone allows either single-family, duplex or multifamily development, with a minimum lot 

area per unit of 3,000 square feet, and a minimum lot size of 3,000 square feet. The applicant’s 

concept development plan shows a single-family home subdivision with a minimum lot size of 3,000 

square feet, and a 54 foot wide public right-of-way for a street. The applicant is not bound by the 

concept development plan, and approval of the annexation would not approve a subdivision for the 

site. If the applicant wishes to apply for a subdivision as shown in the concept development plan then 

they would need to submit a subdivision application after the property was annexed. The concept 

development does show a use (single-family homes) and a lot size (3,000 square feet) that comply 

with the R-2 zone and the MDR Comprehensive Plan designations. This criterion is met. 

B. An adequate level of urban services must be available, or made available, within 

three years’ time of annexation, except as noted in subsection (E) of this section. 

An adequate level of urban services shall be defined as: 

 1. Municipal wastewater and water service meeting the requirements 

98 of 328 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=79
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=79
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=79


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates annexation\PC staff report ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates.doc 

enumerated in the Newberg comprehensive plan for provision of these services. 

 2. Roads with an adequate design capacity for the proposed use and 

projected future uses. Where construction of the road is not deemed necessary 

within the three-year time period, the city shall note requirements such as 

dedication of right-of-way, waiver of remonstrance against assessment for road 

improvement costs, or participation in other traffic improvement costs, for 

application at the appropriate level of the planning process. The city shall also 

consider public costs for improvement and the ability of the city to provide for those 

costs. 

Finding: City water and sewer lines are currently in place along Lynn Drive, which could be used to 

serve the site.  The sanitary sewer line flows to the Highway 240 Pump Station.  A very preliminary 

assessment provided by the applicant’s engineer has determined that the pump station could serve the 

additional flows contributed by this development.  If necessary, upgrades to the pump station could 

be completed by the developer to provide the capacity needed.  At the time of development, a 

detailed analysis of the Highway 240 sanitary sewer pump station is required, and any necessary 

upgrades to the pump station would be completed by the developer.    

The site stormwater management would be designed to comply with the stormwater requirements of 

the municipal code and public works design and construction standards manual in effect at the time 

of site development.   

The property has road frontage along Columbia Drive and Lynn Drive. Future development of this 

property will necessitate roadway frontage improvements, along both property frontages, to City 

standards.  A Yamhill County Permit is required for all improvements along Columbia Drive.  The 

applicant was not required to complete a full traffic impact analysis for the site, as the expected 

impact (29 new trips in the PM peak hour) from development is below the 40 trips in the PM peak 

hour that would trigger a requirement for a traffic study.  However, at the time of development, a 

limited traffic study will be required to evaluate the intersection of Main Street and Lynn Drive. 

C. Findings documenting the availability of police, fire, parks, and school facilities 

and services shall be made to allow for conclusionary findings either for or against 

the proposed annexation. The adequacy of these services shall be considered in 

relation to annexation proposals. 

Finding: The city sent the application information out to the Police and Fire Departments, Chehalem 

Parks and Recreation District (CPRD), and the Newberg School District, among other agencies, for 

comments prior to the staff report. The School District commented “reviewed, no conflict.” There is 

no information to suggest that city services could not support the addition of the 3.06 acres of 

property, plus the area of the adjacent right-of-way, to the city limits, and in fact future development 

of the site helps fund these city services and other System Development Charge or permit fee funded 

services such as the School District and CPRD. It should be noted that the City of Newberg does not 

do future planning for the Parks District or the School District; however, the city coordinates with 

those agencies on a regular basis in regards to future planning efforts.  This type of coordination is 

99 of 328 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=79
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=249
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates annexation\PC staff report ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates.doc 

typically done at the time of urban growth boundary expansion, when properties are added to serve as 

the future 20-year urbanizable area.    

D. The burden for providing the findings for subsections (A), (B) and (C) of this 

section is placed upon the applicant. 

Finding: The applicant submitted adequate information to allow the city to make findings to the 

applicable criteria.  

E. The city council may annex properties where urban services are not and cannot 

practically be made available within the three-year time frame noted in subsection 

(B) of this section, but where annexation is needed to address a health hazard, to 

annex an island, to address wastewater or water connection issues for existing 

development, to address specific legal or contract issues, to annex property where 

the timing and provision of adequate services in relation to development is or will 

be addressed through legislatively adopted specific area plans or similar plans, or to 

address similar situations. In these cases, absent a specific legal or contractual 

constraint, the city council shall apply an interim zone, such as a limited-use 

overlay, that would limit development of the property until such time as the services 

become available.  

Finding: This criterion is not applicable because adequate urban services are found to be available 

within the three year time frame. 

C. 15.302.030 Procedures for comprehensive plan map and zoning map amendments. 

A.3. Amendment Criteria. The owner must demonstrate compliance with the 

following criteria: 

a. The proposed change is consistent with and promotes the goals and policies of 

the Newberg comprehensive plan and this code; 

Finding: The property has a Comprehensive Plan designation of MDR (Medium Density 

Residential), which corresponds with the requested zoning of R-2 (Medium Density Residential).   

The Comprehensive Plan Housing Goal says “To provide for diversity in the type, density and 

location of housing within the City to ensure there is an adequate supply of affordable housing units 

to meet the needs of City residents of various income levels.” Annexations meet the intent of the 

Goal because they provide land to meet the needs of City residents. The proposed change is 

consistent with and promotes the goals and policies of Newberg’s comprehensive plan. This criterion 

is met.  

b. Public facilities and services are or can be reasonably made available to support 

the uses allowed by the proposed change; 

Finding: As demonstrated in the finding to 15.250.030.B. above, the applicant has demonstrated that 

adequate public facilities and services can be reasonably made available to support future 

100 of 328 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=68
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=68
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=23
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=79
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates annexation\PC staff report ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates.doc 

development of the property at R-2 permitted densities.  

c. Compliance with the State Transportation Planning Rule (OAR 660-012-0060) 

for proposals that significantly affect transportation facilities. 

Finding: Annexation of the property complies with the State Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) 

(OAR 660-012-0060) because it meets the requirements for an amendment to a zoning map that does 

not significantly affect an existing or planned transportation facility as permitted by Subsection (9) of 

the TPR: the proposed zoning of R-2 is consistent with the existing comprehensive plan map 

designation of MDR; the City of Newberg has an acknowledged TSP which included this area in the 

urban reserve as planned future urbanizable land; this property was brought into the urban growth 

boundary in 2006 as part of a larger urban growth boundary amendment that included a full report 

with adequate justifications for transportation and other public facilities. The TPR report submitted 

by the applicant’s traffic engineer states that, in order to comply with the TPR, development should 

be limited to 27 single-family homes or acceptable uses that generate less than the 258 trips 

anticipated in the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

OAR 660-012-0060(9) Notwithstanding section (1) of this rule, a local government may find 

that an amendment to a zoning map does not significantly affect an existing or planned 

transportation facility if all of the following requirements are met. 

(a) The proposed zoning is consistent with the existing comprehensive plan map designation 

and the amendment does not change the comprehensive plan map; 

(b) The local government has an acknowledged TSP and the proposed zoning is consistent 

with the TSP; and 

(c) The area subject to the zoning map amendment was not exempted from this rule at the 

time of an urban growth boundary amendment as permitted in OAR 660-024-0020(1)(d), or 

the area was exempted from this rule but the local government has a subsequently 

acknowledged TSP amendment that accounted for urbanization of the area. 

[Subsection (1) of OAR 660-012-0060] 

(1) If an amendment to a functional plan, an acknowledged comprehensive plan, or a 

land use regulation (including a zoning map) would significantly affect an existing or 

planned transportation facility, then the local government must put in place measures 

as provided in section (2) of this rule, unless the amendment is allowed under section 

(3), (9) or (10) of this rule. A plan or land use regulation amendment significantly 

affects a transportation facility if it would: 

(a) Change the functional classification of an existing or planned transportation 

facility (exclusive of correction of map errors in an adopted plan); 

(b) Change standards implementing a functional classification system; or 

101 of 328 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates annexation\PC staff report ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates.doc 

(c) Result in any of the effects listed in paragraphs (A) through (C) of this subsection 

based on projected conditions measured at the end of the planning period identified 

in the adopted TSP. As part of evaluating projected conditions, the amount of traffic 

projected to be generated within the area of the amendment may be reduced if the 

amendment includes an enforceable, ongoing requirement that would demonstrably 

limit traffic generation, including, but not limited to, transportation demand 

management. This reduction may diminish or completely eliminate the significant 

effect of the amendment. 

(A) Types or levels of travel or access that are inconsistent with the functional 

classification of an existing or planned transportation facility; 

(B) Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility such 

that it would not meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or 

comprehensive plan; or 

(C) Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility that is 

otherwise projected to not meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or 

comprehensive plan. 

 

D. Conclusion:  Based on the above-mentioned findings, the application, as conditioned, meets 

the criteria of the Newberg Development Code. 

 

Conditions of approval 
 

1. At the time of development, a detailed analysis of the Highway 240 sanitary sewer pump 

station is required, and any necessary upgrades to the pump station would be completed by 

the developer.    

2. At the time of development, a limited traffic study will be required to evaluate the 

intersection of Main Street and Lynn Drive. 

3. The TPR report submitted by the applicant’s traffic engineer states that, in order to comply 

with the TPR, development should be limited to 27 single-family homes or acceptable uses 

that generate less than the 258 trips anticipated in the Comprehensive Plan. 

102 of 328 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates annexation\PC staff report ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates.doc 

Attachment 1:  Aerial Photo 
 

103 of 328 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates annexation\PC staff report ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates.doc 

Attachment 2:  Concept Development Plan 

104 of 328 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates annexation\PC staff report ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates.doc 

Attachment 3:  Comprehensive Plan Map 
 

105 of 328 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates annexation\PC staff report ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates.doc 

Attachment 4: Zoning Map 

 

106 of 328 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates annexation\PC staff report ANX-16-003 Columbia Estates.doc 

Attachment 5: Comments 

  

(none received)  

107 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION108 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION109 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION110 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION111 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION112 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION113 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION114 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION115 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION116 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION117 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION118 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION119 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION120 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION121 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION122 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION123 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION124 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION125 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION126 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION127 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION128 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION129 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION130 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION131 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION132 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION133 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION134 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION135 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION136 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION137 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION138 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION139 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION140 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION141 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION142 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION143 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION144 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION145 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION146 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION147 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION148 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION149 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION150 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION151 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION152 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION153 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION154 of 328 



Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\Danicic\Newberg - Columbia Drive\Application data\Type III Mailed Notice - Partition.doc 

  Community Development Department 
    P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132     

    503-537-1240. Fax 503-537-1272   www.newbergoregon.gov 

  

 

 

 

 

 

A property owner in your neighborhood submitted an application to the City of Newberg for an 

annexation and zoning amendment. The Newberg Planning Commission will hold a hearing on 

May 12, 2016  at 7pm at the Newberg Public Safety Building, 401 E. Third Street, Newberg, 

OR, to evaluate the proposal. You are invited to take part in the City's review of this project by 

sending in your written comments or testifying before the Planning Commission. For more 

details about giving comments, please see the back of this sheet.  

 

The application would annex three tax lots into the city and amend the zoning from the Yamhill 

County designation of VLDR-1 to City designation of MDR (R2) 

 
APPLICANT:   Del Boca Vista, LLC 

 

TELEPHONE:   503 590-8600 

 

PROPERTY OWNERS:   Jo Daklin (TL 1700 and 1701) 

 Richard and Merrilee Lee (Tax Lot 1702) 

 

LOCATION:   See map below 

 

TAX LOT NUMBER:  Yamhill County Tax Map 3218AB Tax Lot Numbers 1700, 1701 and 1702 

 

 

NOTIC OF PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING 
ANNEXATION AND ZONING AMENDMENT 

Project Location 

 

ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION155 of 328 



Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\Danicic\Newberg - Columbia Drive\Application data\Type III Mailed Notice - Partition.doc 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We are mailing you information about this project because you own land within 500 feet of the 

proposed historic review. We invite you to participate in the land use hearing scheduled before 

the Planning Commission. If you wish to participate in the hearing, you may do so in person or 

be represented by someone else. You also may submit written comments. Oral testimony is 

typically limited to five minutes per speaker.  

 

If you mail your comments to the City, please put the following information on the outside of the 

envelope:  

 

Written Comments: File ANX-15-001  

City of Newberg Community Development Department  

PO Box 970 Newberg, OR 97132  

 

All written comments must be received by 4:30 p.m. on May 5, 2016.  Written information 

received after this time will be read out loud at the hearing subject to time limits for speakers, 

and will be included in the record if there are further proceedings. 

 

You can look over all the information about this project or drop comments off at Newberg City 

Hall, 414 E. First Street. You can also buy copies of the information for a cost of 25 cents a page. 

A staff report relating to the proposal will be available for inspection at no cost seven days prior 

to the public hearing. If you have any questions about the project, you can call the Newberg 

Planning Division at 503-537-1240. 

 

Any issue which might be raised in an appeal of this case to the Land Use Board of Appeals 

(LUBA) must be raised during the public hearing process. You must include enough detail to 

enable the decision maker an opportunity to respond. The applicable criteria used to make a 

decision on this application for a historic review are found in Newberg Development Code 

Section 15.344.030 (A) (3).  

 

Prior to the conclusion of the initial evidentiary hearing, any participant may request an 

opportunity to present additional evidence, arguments or testimony regarding the application 

through a continuance or extension of the record. Failure of an issue to be raised in the hearing, 

in person or by letter, or failure to provide statements or evidence sufficient to afford the 

decision maker an opportunity to respond to the issue precludes appeal to the State Land Use 

Board of Appeals based on that issue.  

 

The Planning Commission will make a decision at the end of the public hearing process. If you 

participate in the public hearing process, either by testifying at the public hearing, or by sending 

in written comments, we will send you information about any decision made by the City relating 

to this project.  

 

Date Mailed: April 5, 2016 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION156 of 328 



 

Z:\Danicic\Newberg - Columbia Drive\Application data\Draft Public Notice Sign.docx 

 

DRAFT POSTED NOTICE 
 
 
 

Land Use Notice 
 

FILE # ANX-15-001  

 

PROPOSAL:  Annexation and Zoning Amendment 
 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION, CONTACT: 
City of Newberg 

Community Development Department 
414 E First Street 

Phone: 503-537-1240 
 
 
 

3′ 
 

 
Notice must be white with black letters, and must be landscape orientation, as shown above. 

The notice must be lettered using block printing or a “sans-serif” font, such as Arial. 
 

 

2’ 

ATTACHMENT 6: APPLICATION157 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-002 - 520 W. Third St\PC staff report ANX-16-002 520 W. Third St.doc 

    Community Development Department 
       P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132 

       503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

520 W. THIRD STREET ANNEXATION/ZONE CHANGE 

 

HEARING DATE: May 12, 2016 

FILE NO:  ANX-16-002  

REQUEST: Annex 1.41 acres into the City of Newberg and change the zoning from Yamhill 

County HI to Newberg M-2. 

LOCATION: Directly west of the current Newberg city limits at 520 W. Third Street, next to the 

Newberg Public Works – Maintenance yard.  

TAX LOT: 3219BD-1000 (western part) 

APPLICANT: City of Newberg – Public Works Maintenance  

OWNER: Same as applicant 

PLAN DISTRICT: IND (Industrial) with a Stream Corridor overlay on part of the site 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Planning Commission Resolution 2016-318 with: 

 Exhibit “A”:  Property Map 

 Exhibit “B”:  Legal Description 

 Exhibit “C”:  Findings 

1. Aerial Photo  

2. Concept Development Plan 

3. Comprehensive Plan Map 

4. Zoning Map 

5. Public Comments 

6. Application 
 

158 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-002 - 520 W. Third St\PC staff report ANX-16-002 520 W. Third St.doc 

A. DESCRIPTION OF APPLICATION:   The proposed annexation is for 1.41 acres located at 

520 W. Third Street, directly west of the current city limits. The eastern part of the lot is 

already inside the city limits. This annexation would add the western part of the lot to the city 

limits, except for a small portion of the southwest corner that is outside of the urban growth 

boundary. The property is located within the Newberg urban growth boundary and has a 

Newberg Comprehensive Plan designation of IND (Industrial), with a Stream Corridor overlay 

on part of the site. The annexation would change the zoning of the property from Yamhill 

County HI (Heavy Industrial) to Newberg M-2 (Light Industrial), with a Stream Corridor 

zoning overlay on part of the site. The City Public Works Maintenance yard will expand into 

the site.  

B. LOCATION MAP 

 

C. SITE INFORMATION: 

1. Location:  Directly west of the current Newberg city limits at 520 W. Third Street 

2. Size: 1.41 acres 

3. Topography: Most of the property is relatively flat, with a steep slope to the stream in 

the southwest corner of the site 

4. Current Land Uses: The flat part of the site was formerly used by CalPortland as a 

cement plant, and some storage buildings remain on the site. The remainder of the flat 

site is either graveled or paved for industrial use and outdoor storage. 

159 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-002 - 520 W. Third St\PC staff report ANX-16-002 520 W. Third St.doc 

5. Natural Features: The stream corridor area in the southwest corner was left 

undeveloped and contains some mature trees and heavy vegetation.  

6. Adjacent Land Uses: 

a. North: railroad tracks/commercial  

b. East: Public Works maintenance yard  

c. Southwest: Chehalem Creek stream corridor, vacant industrial land (outside 

city limits) 

d. Southeast: large lot residential  

e. West: railroad tracks/commercial  

7. Access and Transportation: The property has access to W. Third Street.  

8. Utilities:  

a. There is a 12-inch water line in Third Street, and two existing ¾ inch water 

laterals to the property.   

b. There is a 15-inch diameter wastewater line that runs north-south through the 

site along its eastern property line, and an 8-inch diameter wastewater line in 

Third Street.  

c. A stormwater drain is located in Third Street at the north end of the site.  

 

D. PROCESS:  An annexation and zone change request is a Type III application and follows the 

procedures in Newberg Development Code 15.100.050.  The Planning Commission will hold 

a quasi-judicial hearing on the application.  The Commission makes a recommendation on the 

application based on the criteria listed in the attached findings.  The Planning Commission’s 

recommendation is forwarded to the City Council, who will hold a hearing and render a final 

decision on the application. State law recently changed with the passage and adoption of 

Oregon Senate Bill 1573, which added language to ORS 222.111 preempting Newberg’s 

requirement that annexations go to a public vote, and instead directs the legislative body of a 

city to annex property without a public vote when the property meets certain requirements. 

Important dates related to this application are as follows: 

4/22/16: The Community Development Director deemed the application complete. 

 4/19/16: The applicant mailed notice to the property owners within 500 feet of the site. 

 4/22/16: The applicant posted the site.  

4/27/16: The Newberg Graphic published notice of the Planning Commission hearing. 

 5/12/16: The Planning Commission will hold a quasi-judicial hearing to consider the 

application. 

E. AGENCY COMMENTS:  The application was routed to several public agencies for review 

and comment.  Comments and recommendations from city departments have been 

incorporated into the findings and conditions.  As of the writing of this report, the city 

received the following agency comments:  

Newberg School District:  Reviewed; no conflict.  

PGE: Reviewed, no conflict. 

Department of State Lands (summarized – the full comment is in Attachment 5): The property 

160 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-002 - 520 W. Third St\PC staff report ANX-16-002 520 W. Third St.doc 

includes a waterway, Chehalem Creek, which is designated essential salmonid habitat. Site 

work within the developed footprint of this tax lot should not impact jurisdictional wetlands or 

waters. DSL will require a permit for any impact to the creek and its associated wetlands. For 

future information, please contact DSL prior to any work outside of the developed footprint to 

determine if a permit and/or wetland inspection will be needed. 

F. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  As of the writing of this report, the city has received no written 

public comments.   

G. ANALYSIS:  This is an annexation request for 1.41 acres of property that is within the 

Newberg urban growth boundary. The property has a Comprehensive Plan designation of IND 

(Industrial), which corresponds with the requested zoning of M-2 (Light Industrial) per section 

15.250.080 of the Newberg Development Code. There are existing utilities in place to serve 

the site.  

State law recently changed with the passage and adoption of Oregon Senate Bill 1573, which 

added language to ORS 222.111 preempting Newberg’s (and other cities) requirement that 

annexations go to a public vote, and instead directs the legislative body of a city to annex property 

without a public vote when the property meets certain requirements, including: being within the 

urban growth boundary; subject to the Comprehensive Plan of the city; contiguous to city limits; 

and meeting the city’s adopted Development Code criteria for annexation. This property meets 

those criteria as outlined in the findings in Exhibit “C” and will not be sent to a public vote. The 

City Council will make the final local decision on this application for annexation.  

H. PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  The preliminary staff recommendation 

is made in the absence of public hearing testimony, and may be modified subsequent to the 

close of the public hearing.  At this writing, staff recommends the following motion: 

 Move to adopt Planning Commission Resolution 2016-318, which recommends that the City 

Council approve the requested annexation and zone change.

161 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-002 - 520 W. Third St\PC staff report ANX-16-002 520 W. Third St.doc 

 PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 2016-318 

A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE AN ANNEXATION OF 1.41 

ACRES OF PROPERTY INTO THE CITY OF NEWBERG AND CHANGE THE ZONING FROM YAMHILL 

COUNTY HI TO NEWBERG M-2, FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 520 W. THIRD STREET, THE 

WESTERN PORTION OF TAX LOT 3219BD-1000 

RECITALS 

1. The City of Newberg Public Works Department submitted an application to annex 1.41 acres of 

property into the City of Newberg and change the zoning from Yamhill County HI to Newberg M-

2.  The annexation site is the western portion of 520 W. Third Street, Yamhill County tax lot 

3219BD-1000.  

2. After proper notice, the Newberg Planning Commission held a hearing on May 12, 2016, to 

consider the application.  The Commission considered testimony, and deliberated. 

3. The Newberg Planning Commission finds that the application, as conditioned, meets the 

applicable Newberg Development Code criteria as shown in the findings in Exhibit “C”. 

4. State law recently changed with the passage and adoption of Oregon Senate Bill 1573, which 

added language to ORS 222.111 that preempts Newberg’s requirement that annexations go to a 

public vote, and instead directs the legislative body of a city to annex property without a public 

vote when the property meets certain requirements, including: being within the urban growth 

boundary; subject to the Comprehensive Plan of the city; contiguous to city limits; and meeting 

the city’s adopted Development Code criteria for annexation. This property meets those criteria. 

The Newberg Planning Commission resolves as follows: 

1. The Planning Commission recommends that the City Council annex the property shown in 

Exhibit “A” and described in Exhibit “B”, as conditioned, along with a zone change to M-2, 

and withdraw the property from the Newberg Rural Fire Protection District.  Exhibits "A" and 

“B” are hereby adopted and by this reference incorporated. 

2. This recommendation is based on the findings shown in Exhibit “C”.  Exhibit "C" is hereby 

adopted and by this reference incorporated. 

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this 12th day of May, 2016. 

        ATTEST: 

 

Planning Commission Chair     Planning Commission Secretary 

162 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-002 - 520 W. Third St\PC staff report ANX-16-002 520 W. Third St.doc 

Exhibit “A” to Planning Commission Resolution No. 2016-318 

Annexation Map – 520 W. Third Street 

163 of 328 



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-002 - 520 W. Third St\PC staff report ANX-16-002 520 W. Third St.doc 

Exhibit “B” to Planning Commission Resolution No. 2016-318 

Legal Description – 520 W. Third Street Annexation 
 

 

 

164 of 328 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-002 - 520 W. Third St\PC staff report ANX-16-002 520 W. Third St.doc 

Exhibit “C” to Planning Commission Resolution No. 2016-318 

Findings & Conditions –File ANX-16-002 – 520 W. Third Street 

A. 15.250.020 Conditions for annexation. 

The following conditions must be met prior to or concurrent with city processing of 

any annexation request: 

A. The subject site must be located within the Newberg urban growth boundary or 

Newberg urban reserve areas. 

B. The subject site must be contiguous to the existing city limits. 

Finding:  The site, located at 520 W. Third Street, is located within the urban growth boundary and 

is contiguous to the existing city limits on its east boundary.  

B. 15.250.030 Quasi-judicial annexation criteria. 

The following criteria shall apply to all annexation requests: 

A. The proposed use for the site complies with the Newberg comprehensive plan 

and with the designation on the Newberg comprehensive plan map. If a 

redesignation of the plan map is requested concurrent with annexation, the uses 

allowed under the proposed designation must comply with the Newberg 

comprehensive plan. 

Finding: The property has a Comprehensive Plan designation of IND (Industrial), with a Stream 

Corridor overlay on the southwest corner. The applicant has requested M-2 (Light Industrial) zoning 

for the site. The M-2 zoning district is consistent with the IND comprehensive plan designation, and 

a Stream Corridor zoning overlay will be placed on the southwest corner of the site. This criterion is 

met. 

The Department of State Lands (DSL) commented that Chehalem Creek, on the southwest side of the 

site, has been designated Essential Salmonid Habitat. Based on the information provided, work 

within the developed footprint of this tax lot should not impact jurisdictional wetlands or waters. 

DSL will require a permit for any impact to the creek and its associated wetlands; contact DSL prior 

to any work outside of the developed footprint of the site to determine if a permit and/or wetland 

inspection will be needed. 

B. An adequate level of urban services must be available, or made available, within 

three years’ time of annexation, except as noted in subsection (E) of this section. 

An adequate level of urban services shall be defined as: 

 1. Municipal wastewater and water service meeting the requirements 

enumerated in the Newberg comprehensive plan for provision of these services. 

165 of 328 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=79
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=79
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=79
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=79


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-002 - 520 W. Third St\PC staff report ANX-16-002 520 W. Third St.doc 

 2. Roads with an adequate design capacity for the proposed use and 

projected future uses. Where construction of the road is not deemed necessary 

within the three-year time period, the city shall note requirements such as 

dedication of right-of-way, waiver of remonstrance against assessment for road 

improvement costs, or participation in other traffic improvement costs, for 

application at the appropriate level of the planning process. The city shall also 

consider public costs for improvement and the ability of the city to provide for those 

costs. 

Finding: Adequate urban services are currently available to the property. There is a 15-inch diameter 

wastewater line that runs north-south through the site along its eastern property line, and an 8-inch 

diameter wastewater line in Third Street. A 12-inch water main and two ¾-inch laterals in Third 

Street provide water service to the site. Stormwater is currently connected via an existing main in 

Third Street. 

The proposed use as part of the Public Works Maintenance yard is expected to generate fewer trips 

than the previous use as a cement plant. Future redevelopment of the property may require 

improvements to the street frontage along Third Street. This criterion is met. 

C. Findings documenting the availability of police, fire, parks, and school facilities 

and services shall be made to allow for conclusionary findings either for or against 

the proposed annexation. The adequacy of these services shall be considered in 

relation to annexation proposals. 

Finding: The city sent the application information out to the Police and Fire Departments, Chehalem 

Parks and Recreation District (CPRD), and the Newberg School District, among other agencies, for 

comments prior to the staff report. No departments or agencies noted any problems with providing 

services to the proposed annexation site. The public services provided by the Public Works 

Maintenance Division support the services provided by these other public departments and agencies. 

Police, fire, parks and school services are found to be adequate for the proposed annexation. 

D. The burden for providing the findings for subsections (A), (B) and (C) of this 

section is placed upon the applicant. 

Finding: The applicant submitted adequate information to allow the city to make findings to the 

applicable criteria.  

E. The city council may annex properties where urban services are not and cannot 

practically be made available within the three-year time frame noted in subsection 

(B) of this section, but where annexation is needed to address a health hazard, to 

annex an island, to address wastewater or water connection issues for existing 

development, to address specific legal or contract issues, to annex property where 

the timing and provision of adequate services in relation to development is or will 

be addressed through legislatively adopted specific area plans or similar plans, or to 

address similar situations. In these cases, absent a specific legal or contractual 

constraint, the city council shall apply an interim zone, such as a limited-use 

166 of 328 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=249
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=68
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=68


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-002 - 520 W. Third St\PC staff report ANX-16-002 520 W. Third St.doc 

overlay, that would limit development of the property until such time as the services 

become available.  

Finding: This criterion is not applicable because adequate urban services are found to be available 

within the three year time frame. 

C. 15.302.030 Procedures for comprehensive plan map and zoning map amendments. 

A.3. Amendment Criteria. The owner must demonstrate compliance with the 

following criteria: 

a. The proposed change is consistent with and promotes the goals and policies of 

the Newberg comprehensive plan and this code; 

Finding: The property has a Comprehensive Plan designation of IND (Industrial), with a Stream 

Corridor overly on the southwest corner of the site. The requested M-2 (Light Industrial) zoning 

designation, with a Stream Corridor zoning overlay on the southwest corner of the site, corresponds 

to the Comprehensive Plan designation. The proposed zone change is therefore consistent with the 

Newberg Comprehensive Plan, and this criterion is met.  

b. Public facilities and services are or can be reasonably made available to support 

the uses allowed by the proposed change; 

Finding: As demonstrated in the finding to 15.250.030.B. above, the applicant has demonstrated that 

adequate public facilities and services are available to the property.   

c. Compliance with the State Transportation Planning Rule (OAR 660-012-0060) 

for proposals that significantly affect transportation facilities. 

Finding: Annexation of the property complies with the State Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) 

(OAR 660-012-0060) because it meets the requirements for an amendment to a zoning map that does 

not significantly affect an existing or planned transportation facility as permitted by Subsection (9) of 

the TPR: the proposed zoning of M-2 is consistent with the existing comprehensive plan map 

designation of IND; the City of Newberg has an acknowledged TSP and the proposed zoning is 

consistent with the TSP; the TSP accounts for the future urbanization of this property.   

 

OAR 660-012-0060(9) Notwithstanding section (1) of this rule, a local government may find 

that an amendment to a zoning map does not significantly affect an existing or planned 

transportation facility if all of the following requirements are met. 

(a) The proposed zoning is consistent with the existing comprehensive plan map designation 

and the amendment does not change the comprehensive plan map; 

(b) The local government has an acknowledged TSP and the proposed zoning is consistent 

with the TSP; and 

167 of 328 

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=23
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=79
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-002 - 520 W. Third St\PC staff report ANX-16-002 520 W. Third St.doc 

(c) The area subject to the zoning map amendment was not exempted from this rule at the 

time of an urban growth boundary amendment as permitted in OAR 660-024-0020(1)(d), or 

the area was exempted from this rule but the local government has a subsequently 

acknowledged TSP amendment that accounted for urbanization of the area. 

[Subsection (1) of OAR 660-012-0060] 

(1) If an amendment to a functional plan, an acknowledged comprehensive plan, or a 

land use regulation (including a zoning map) would significantly affect an existing or 

planned transportation facility, then the local government must put in place measures 

as provided in section (2) of this rule, unless the amendment is allowed under section 

(3), (9) or (10) of this rule. A plan or land use regulation amendment significantly 

affects a transportation facility if it would: 

(a) Change the functional classification of an existing or planned transportation 

facility (exclusive of correction of map errors in an adopted plan); 

(b) Change standards implementing a functional classification system; or 

(c) Result in any of the effects listed in paragraphs (A) through (C) of this subsection 

based on projected conditions measured at the end of the planning period identified 

in the adopted TSP. As part of evaluating projected conditions, the amount of traffic 

projected to be generated within the area of the amendment may be reduced if the 

amendment includes an enforceable, ongoing requirement that would demonstrably 

limit traffic generation, including, but not limited to, transportation demand 

management. This reduction may diminish or completely eliminate the significant 

effect of the amendment. 

(A) Types or levels of travel or access that are inconsistent with the functional 

classification of an existing or planned transportation facility; 

(B) Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility such 

that it would not meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or 

comprehensive plan; or 

(C) Degrade the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility that is 

otherwise projected to not meet the performance standards identified in the TSP or 

comprehensive plan. 

 

168 of 328 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-002 - 520 W. Third St\PC staff report ANX-16-002 520 W. Third St.doc 

D. Conclusion:  Based on the above-mentioned findings, the application meets the criteria of the 

Newberg Development Code, as conditioned. 

 
 

Conditions of approval 
 

1. Department of State Lands: DSL will require a permit for any impact to the creek and 

its associated wetlands; contact DSL prior to any work outside of the developed 

footprint of the site to determine if a permit and/or wetland inspection will be needed.  

 

169 of 328 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-002 - 520 W. Third St\PC staff report ANX-16-002 520 W. Third St.doc 

Attachment 1:  Aerial Photo 
 

 

170 of 328 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-002 - 520 W. Third St\PC staff report ANX-16-002 520 W. Third St.doc 

Attachment 2:  Concept Development Plan 
 

171 of 328 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-002 - 520 W. Third St\PC staff report ANX-16-002 520 W. Third St.doc 

Attachment 3:  Comprehensive Plan Map 
IND (Industrial) with Stream Corridor overlay on SW corner 

  

 
 

172 of 328 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-002 - 520 W. Third St\PC staff report ANX-16-002 520 W. Third St.doc 

Attachment 4: Zoning Map 
Existing County HI (Heavy Industrial), Proposed City M-2 (Light Industrial) with Stream 

Corridor overlay on SW corner 

 

173 of 328 



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.ANX\2016\ANX-16-002 - 520 W. Third St\PC staff report ANX-16-002 520 W. Third St.doc 

Attachment 5: Comments 

 

 

 

174 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6175 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6176 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6177 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6178 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6179 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6180 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6181 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6182 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6183 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6184 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6185 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6186 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6187 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6188 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6189 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6190 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6191 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6192 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6193 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6194 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6195 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6196 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6197 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6198 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6199 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6200 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6201 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6202 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6203 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6204 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6205 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6206 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6207 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6208 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6209 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6210 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6211 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6212 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6213 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6214 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6215 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6216 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6217 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6218 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6219 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6220 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6221 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6222 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6223 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6224 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6225 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6226 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6227 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6228 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6229 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6230 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 6231 of 328 




















































































ATTACHMENT 6232 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

Community Development Department 
P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132 

503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov 

  

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

Nova Grace Subdivision  

 Subdivision Tentative Plan/Variance to maximum building height application 
 

FILE NUMBER:  SUB3-16-001/VAR-16-001 

REQUEST:   Application for a subdivision tentative plan to divide a 1.99 acre parcel into 14 lots for 
single-family detached homes, and for a variance to increase the maximum building 
height from 30 feet to 33 feet.  

APPLICANT:  Del Boca Vista, LLC 
 
OWNER:  Darby Family Trust 
 
LOCATION:  900 Wynooski Street (tax lot 3220CA-900) 

DESIGNATION: Comprehensive Plan designation of MDR (Medium Density Residential); Zoning 
designation of R-2 (Medium Density Residential), with a Stream Corridor overlay on the 
northeast corner of the parcel  

CODE CRITERIA: Newberg Development Code § 15.235.060(A) and 15.215.040 

HEARING DATE: Planning Commission Hearing on May 12, 2016 

ATTACHMENTS:  

Planning Commission Order 2016-21 with:  
Exhibit A: Findings 
Exhibit B: Conditions of approval 
Exhibit C: Tentative plan 

1. Aerial photo 
2. Zoning map 
3. Public & Agency Comments 
4. Application 
5. Newberg Development Code & Comprehensive Plan 

(by reference) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

233 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

Location Map: 900 Wynooski Street 

 

 

 

Proposal 
The applicant has requested a Subdivision tentative plan approval for Nova Grace subdivision. The application 

would divide a 1.99 acre site into 14 lots for single-family detached homes. The existing home on the site will be 

removed. Part of the site is in the Stream Corridor overlay zone, which requires that the subdivision application 

be reviewed by the Planning Commission. The applicant has also requested approval of a variance which would 

increase the maximum building height from 30 feet to 33 feet. 

Process 
This is a Type III application for a Subdivision tentative plan, due to the Stream Corridor overlay on the site. The 

Planning Commission will hear this proposal on May 12, 2016 at 7 p.m. at the Newberg Public Safety Building 

(401 E Third Street).  This will be a quasi-judicial hearing, and after taking public testimony the Planning 

Commission will make a decision on the application based on the criteria listed in the attached findings.  

Noticing: Important dates related to this application are:  

1. 4/18/16: The Community Development Director deemed the application complete. 

2. 4/18/16: The applicant mailed notice to the property owners within 500 feet of the site. 

3. 4/18/16: The applicant posted notice on the site. 

4. 4/27/16: The Newberg Graphic published notice of the Planning Commission hearing. 

234 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

5. 5/12/16: The Planning Commission will hold a quasi-judicial hearing to consider the      

  application. 

 

Site Information 
The site is located on the east side of Wynooski Street above Hess Creek. Most of the site has only a slight slope, 

although the stream corridor is fairly steep. It currently contains a single-family home. There are many mature 

trees around the house and in the stream corridor. 

Surrounding uses:  

 North: Single-family residential 

 East: Stream corridor - undeveloped  

 West: Single-family residential – one large lot with a single house, and some smaller lots. 

 South: Single-family residential 

Access and Transportation:  The property is located on Wynooski Street which is a 2-lane major collector and 

under the jurisdiction of Yamhill County.  The applicant must obtain an access permit from Yamhill County.   

Utilities: 

a. Wastewater:   A 10-inch wastewater line currently exists on Wynooski Street which can be used for 

the development of the site.   

b. Water:  An 18-inch water line currently exists on Wynooski Street which can be used for the 

development of the site. 

c. Stormwater:  A public stormwater ditch exists on Wynooski Street.  

Agency Comments:  
 The application was routed to several public agencies for review and comment.  Comments and 

recommendations from city departments have been incorporated into the findings and conditions. The findings 

are jointly written by the Planning Division and Engineering Department.  As of the writing of this report, the city 

received the following agency comments (summarized below – the full text is in Attachment 3): 

 

 PGE: Reviewed, no conflict. 

 Newberg School District: Reviewed, no conflict. 

 Oregon Dept. of State Lands (summarized): The national wetlands inventory shows a 

wetland/waterway on the property. This is a preliminary jurisdictional determination and is advisory 

only. A permit may be required by the US Army Corps of Engineers. DSL will require a permit for 50 cubic 

yards or greater of impacts below the Ordinary High Water of Hess Creek and/or onsite wetlands. Since 

some of the lots are within the stream corridor, please contact Aquatic Resource Coordinator Mike De 

Blasi at 503-986-5226 to discuss this project and determine if a permit will be required. 

 

235 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

Public Comment: 
As of the writing of this staff report, the city has received no written public comments.  

Issues & Analysis summary: 
 

1. Parking: The subdivision will be for single family homes, each of which will have at least two off-street 

parking spaces. There will be little on-street parking in the subdivision, and there is no on-street parking 

on Wynooski Street. The proposal meets the Development Code, but the applicant is encouraged to 

arrange driveway locations to create as much on-street parking as possible.  

 

2. Variance: – Building height in the R-2 zone is limited to 30 feet. In the Development Code, building 

height is measured to the midpoint of the highest roof gable. The applicant has submitted a three story 

house plan with a building height of 33 feet, and has submitted a variance request to allow 3 additional 

feet of building height.  

 

PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  The preliminary staff recommendation is made in the absence of 

public hearing testimony, and may be modified subsequent to the close of the public hearing.  At this writing, 

staff recommends the following motion: 

Move to adopt Planning Commission Order 2016-21, which approves the requested subdivision tentative 

plan/variance with the attached conditions.  

  

236 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION ORDER NO. 2016-21 

 

 AN ORDER APPROVING SUB3-16-001/VAR-16-001 FOR THE NOVA GRACE 

SUBDIVISION TENTATIVE PLAN & BUILDING HEIGHT VARIANCE AT 900 WYNOOSKI 

STREET, YAMHILL COUNTY TAX LOT 3220CA-0900.   

RECITALS 

1. Del Boca Vista, LLC, submitted an application for tentative plan approval for a 14-lot 

subdivision tentative plat and a variance to increase the building height limit from 30 feet to 33 

feet at 900 Wynooski Street, Yamhill County tax lot 3220CA-0900.  

2. After proper notice, the Newberg Planning Commission held a hearing on May 12, 2016, to 

consider the application.  The Commission considered testimony and deliberated. 

3. The Newberg Planning Commission finds that the application, as conditioned, meets the 

applicable criteria as shown in the findings shown in Exhibit “A”. 

The Newberg Planning Commission orders as follows: 

1. The tentative subdivision plan application SUB3-16-001 and variance application VAR-16-001 

is hereby approved, subject to the conditions contained in Exhibit “B”.  Exhibit "B" is hereby 

adopted and by this reference incorporated. 

2. The findings shown in Exhibit “A” are hereby adopted.  Exhibit "A" is hereby adopted and by 

this reference incorporated. 

3. This order shall be effective May 27, 2016 unless appealed prior to that date. 

4. This order shall expire two years after the effective date above if the applicant does not record 

the final plat by that time, unless an extension is granted per Newberg Development Code 

15.235.130(B). 

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this 12th day of May, 2016. 

 
        ATTEST: 

 

Planning Commission Chair     Planning Commission Secretary 
 

List of Exhibits: 

 Exhibit “A”: Findings  

 Exhibit “B”:  Conditions 

 Exhibit “C”: Tentative plan 

   

237 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

Exhibit A: Findings to  
Order 2016-21 

 

Nova Grace: Subdivision tentative plan & building height variance 

SUB3-16-001/VAR-16-001 

 

I. SUBDIVISION CRITERIA THAT APPLY:  Newberg Development Code 15.235.060(A). 

The Director (Type II) or Planning Commission (Type III) shall approve a subdivision 

of four parcels or more under a Type II or Type III procedure if the resulting parcels 

comply with the following approval criteria: 

 1. Approval does not impede the future best use of the remainder of the property 

under the same ownership or adversely affect the safe and healthful development of 

such remainder or adjoining land or access thereto. 

 

Finding:  

The applicant is dividing all of tax lot 900. Tax lot 1000 is located east of the site and is owned by the same 

owner as tax lot 900, but is almost entirely outside city limits and within the stream corridor. Tax lot 1000 

has no significant development potential. As conditioned, approval of the subdivision would not impede the 

future best use of the remainder of the property or adversely affect the safe and healthful development of 

adjoining land or access thereto. 

 2. The subdivision complies with this code including but not limited to  

15.340.010 through 15.440.080 and 15.235.030 et seq. 

Finding: The lot standards and development standards are addressed in detail below in sections A-C. 

 3. Either:  

 a. Improvements required to be completed prior to final plat approval; or 

 b. The sub divider will substantially complete, as defined by city policies, 

required improvements prior to final plat approval, and enter into a 

performance agreement to complete the remaining improvements.  The 

performance agreement shall include security in a form acceptable to the city in 

sufficient amount to insure completion of all required improvements; or 

 c. A local improvement district shall have been formed to complete the 

required improvements; or 

 d. The required improvements are contained in a city or other 

government agency capital improvement project that is budgeted and scheduled 

238 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

for construction. 

Finding: The required public improvements will be completed prior to final plat approval. 

A. Applicable Lot Requirement:   Newberg Development Code 15.405.010, Lot Area; Lot 

Areas per Dwelling Unit 

A. In the following districts, each lot or development site shall have an area as shown below 

except as otherwise permitted by this code: 

2. In the R-2, R-3, and RP districts, each lot or development site shall have a minimum area of 

3,000 square feet or as may be established by a subdistrict. In the R-2 and R-P districts, the 

average size of lots in a subdivision intended for single-family development shall not exceed 

5,000 square feet. 

C. In calculating lot area for this section, lot area does not include land within public 

or private streets. In calculating lot area for maximum lot area/minimum density 

requirements, lot area does not include land within stream corridors, land reserved for 

public parks or open spaces, commons buildings, land for preservation of natural, scenic, or 

historic resources, land on slopes exceeding 15 percent or for avoidance of identified natural 

hazards, land in shared access easements, public walkways, or entirely used for utilities, land 

held in reserve in accordance with a future development plan, or land for uses not 

appurtenant to the residence. 

D. Lot size averaging is allowed for any subdivision. Some lots may be under the 

minimum lot size required in the zone where the subdivision is located, as long as the average 

size of all lots is at least the minimum lot size. 

Finding: The proposed lots range in size from 2,420 sf to 11,017 sf. The average lot size is 4,518 sf, which 

exceeds the 3,000 sf per lot minimum for average lot size. The average lot size without the stream corridor 

area included is 3,189 sf. The average lot size does not exceed the 5,000 sf maximum. The lot area does not 

include land within public or private streets. The maximum lot area calculation did not include land within 

stream corridors. This criterion is met. 

B. Applicable Lot Requirements – Newberg Development Code 15.405.030 Lot Dimensions 

and Frontage 

A. Width. Widths of lots shall conform to the standards of this code. 

B. Depth to Width Ratio. Each lot and parcel shall have an average depth between the 

front and rear lines of not more than two and one-half times the average width between 

the side lines. Depths of lots shall conform to the standards of this code. Development 

of lots under 15,000 square feet are exempt from the lot depth to width ratio 

requirement. 

C. Area. Lot sizes shall conform to standards set forth in this code. Lot area 

calculations shall not include area contained in public or private streets as defined by 

this code. 

239 of 328 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=94
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=275
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=234
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=270
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=216.1
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=211.1
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=296
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=93
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289


Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

D. Frontage. 

 1. No lot or development site shall have less than the following lot frontage 

standards: 

  a. Each lot or development site shall have either frontage on a public 

street for a distance of at least 25 feet or have access to a public street through an 

easement that is at least 25 feet wide. No new private streets, as defined in NMC 

15.05.030, shall be created to provide frontage or access. 

  b. Each lot in an R-2 and R-3 zone shall have a minimum width of 30 

feet at the front building line. 

  c. Each lot in an R-1, AI, or RP zone shall have a minimum width of 50 

feet at the front building line. 

  d. Each lot in an AR zone shall have a minimum width of 45 feet at the 

front building line. 

 2. The above standards apply with the following exceptions: 

  a. Legally created lots of record in existence prior to the effective date of 

the ordinance codified in this code. 

  b. Lots or development sites which, as a process of their creation, were 

approved with sub-standard widths in accordance with provisions of this code. 

  c. Existing private streets may not be used for new dwelling units, except 

private streets that were created prior to March 1, 1999, including paving to fire access 

roads standards and installation of necessary utilities, and private streets allowed in the 

airport residential and airport industrial districts.  

Finding: All of the lots in the subdivision have at least 25 feet of frontage on a street or through an 

access easement, and are at least 30 feet wide at the front building line. This criterion is met. 

C. Applicable Development Standards  

NDC 15.510.040:  Water Supply.  All lots and parcels within subdivisions and 

partitions shall be served by the water system of the City of Newberg. 

Findings: Engineering permit general comment: The Public Works (PW) Design and Construction 

Standards require that the applicant submit engineered construction plans for review and approval of all 

utilities, public street improvements, and any new public streets being constructed.  Please note that 

additional Engineering Department plan review application and fees apply for review of plans.  Submit 

any required easements for review and approval, and record approved easements. No construction of, or 

connection to, any existing or proposed public utility/improvements will be permitted until all plans are 

approved and all necessary permits have been obtained 

240 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

There is an existing 18-inch public water line on Wynooski Street.  The applicant is proposing to utilize 

the line for service to the development.  As required by PW Design and Construction Standards (Section 

3.2.2) the applicant must provide an 8-inch public water line as the primary feeder line to the 

subdivision.  The applicant is proposed an 8-inch public water line from Wynooski Street to the 

subdivision.  This requirement is met. 

The utility plan provided by the applicant shows utility lines that may not meet the separation 

requirements of PW Design and Construction Standards Section 3.2.4.  The applicant must provide a 

revised utility plan and profile sheets showing utility line separation that meets the requirements of PW 

Design and Construction Standards Section 3.2.4. 

Public water lines must meet alignment requirements as specified in PW Design and Construction 

Standards Section 3.2.3 and Drawing 103.  The utility plan provided by the applicant may not meet these 

alignment requirements. The applicant must provide a revised utility plan that meets the alignment 

requirements of PW Design and Construction Standards Section 3.2.3 and Drawing 103. 

The utility plan provided by the applicant shows water service lines greater than 80 feet in length.  PW 

Design and Construction Standards Section 3.1 requires a minimum pressure of 40 psi as measured at 

the meter.  The applicant must provide domestic flow calculations showing that the minimum pressure 

of the service lines meets the requirements of PW Design and Construction Standards Section 3.1. 

PW Design and Construction Standards Section 3.3.9, require that water service lines terminate in front 

of the property to be served and be located 18 inches each side of a common property line.  The utility 

plan provided by the applicant does not meet the requirements of this section.  The applicant must 

provide a revised utility plan showing water service lines that meet the requirements of PW Design and 

Construction Standards Section 3.3.9   

A public fire hydrant is located within 500 feet of the proposed development. Show existing hydrants on 

drawings; new hydrants may be necessary to comply with the Fire Code. PW Design and Construction 

Standards Section 3.1 require a minimum fire flow of 1,000 gpm with a 20 psi residual.  The applicant 

must provide fire flow calculations that meeting the requirements of PW Design and Construction 

Standards (Section 3.1) to Engineering Services for review and approval. 

 

NDC 15.510.050:  Sewage.  All lots and parcels within subdivisions and partitions 

shall, where practicable, as determined by the Director, in accordance with the 

provisions of this Code, be served by the sewage system of the City. 

Findings:  There is an existing 10-inch public wastewater line on Wynooski Street.  The applicant is 

proposing to utilize the line for service to the development. The City of Newberg Sewerage Master Plan 

(2007), shows that Tax Lot 3220CA 00900 at 900 Wynooski Street is served by a septic system.  The 

applicant must abandon and remove the existing septic system as required by NMC 13.10.050 to NMC 

13.10.070 or provide written confirmation from Yamhill County that it has previously been 

decommissioned and appropriately removed from the site. 

Public wastewater lines must meet alignment requirements as specified in PW Design and Construction 

Standards Section 2.4 and Drawing 103.  The utility plan provided by the applicant does not appear to 

241 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

not meet these alignment requirements. The applicant must provide a revised utility plan that meets the 

alignment requirements of PW Design and Construction Standards Section 2.4 and Drawing 103. 

 

NDC 15.510.060:  Land Surface Drainage.  Such grading shall be done and such 

drainage facilities shall be constructed by the land divider as are adequate for the 

purpose of proper drainage of the partition or subdivision, of areas affected thereby, 

and for the preservation of healthful and convenient surroundings and conditions for 

residents of the subdivision or partition, and for the general public, in accordance with 

specifications adopted by the City Council under 15.510.030. 

Findings: More than 1 acre will be disturbed by the project which requires that the applicant obtain a 

1200-C permit from the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ).  PW Design and 

Construction Standards 1.8.7 and the City of Newberg’s Erosion and Sediment Control Manual requires 

that the applicant provide a copy of the DEQ 1200-C permit to the City for review.      

The applicant shows public stormwater easements on the utility plan.  The easements may conflict with 

the requirements for easements which are shown in PW Design and Construction Standards Drawing 

109.  The applicant must provide the Engineering Department with the proposed language and final 

locations of the public easement for review and approval prior to recording the easement.  The easement 

must comply with the requirements of PW Design and Construction Standards Drawing 109.   

The applicant shows a large stormwater outfall, and a small stormwater outfall for lot 8, on the eastern 

boundary of the property.  PW Design and Construction Standards Section 4.1 states that stormwater 

cannot flow over adjacent public or private property in a volume, velocity, or location materially 

different from that which existed before development occurred.  The applicant must provide a revised 

stormwater report with calculations that show volumes and velocities that meet PWDCS requirements. 

A private stormwater easement is required over tax lot 1000 for the stormwater flow; provide a draft 

easement for review and approval prior to recording the easement. 

The applicant shows a stormwater outfall on the eastern boundary of the property.  PW Design and 

Construction Standards Section 4.1 and Section 4.5.11 require that stormwater exiting a property be 

discharged at the natural location with adequate flow control and energy dissipation to prevent flooding, 

erosion, and sedimentation.  The stormwater report submitted with the applications shows an outfall area 

but does not provide calculations showing that stormwater exiting will have non-erosional velocities.  

The applicant must provide a revised stormwater report with calculations that show the energy dissipater 

will reduce stormwater velocity to a non-erosional level.   

PW Design and Construction Standards Section 4.3 and Drawing 103 specify the alignment and cover 

requirements of the stormwater system.  The utility plan submitted by the applicant may not adhere to 

these requirements.  The applicant must provide a revised utility plan that complies with PW Design and 

Construction Standards Section 4.3 and Drawing 103.   

PW Design and Construction Standards Section 4.4 specifies the location of structures such as inlets, 

catch basins, and manholes.  The utility plan submitted by the applicant may not adhere to these 

requirements.  The applicant must provide a revised utility plan that complies with PW Design and 

Construction Standards Section 4.4. 

242 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

PW Design and Construction Standards Section 4.5 specifies the information that must be contained 

within the stormwater report.  The stormwater report submitted by the applicant does not provide the 

level of information required by Section 4.5.  The applicant must provide a revised stormwater report 

that provides the information required by PW Design and Construction Standards Section 4.5.   

PW Design and Construction Standards Section 4.5 requires that a plan be submitted for maintaining 

private stormwater facilities.  The maintenance plan submitted by the applicant cannot be reviewed by 

the City because of the type of stormwater facilities is not readily apparent from the stormwater report 

and the utility plan.  The applicant must provide a revised maintenance plan to the City, for review and 

approval, that is appropriate for the type of stormwater facilities that will be constructed at the site. 

PW Design and Construction Standards Section 4.5.1 requires engineering calculations for sizing 

stormwater facilities.  The applicant has submitted a stormwater report that uses a simplistic (SIM) form 

for sizing the stormwater facilities and provides insufficient information to provide a qualified review.  

The applicant must provide a revised stormwater report that meets the requirements and provides the 

engineering calculations required by PW Design and Construction Standards Sections 4.5 to 4.9. 

PW Design and Construction Standards 4.5 requires a minimum time of concentration of 5 minutes.  

The utility plan submitted by the applicant does not appear to provide a minimum time of concentration 

of 5 minutes for all lots prior to discharge.  The applicant must provide a revised stormwater report that 

uses a calculated minimum time of concentration of 5 minutes. 

PW Design and Construction Standards 4.6.5 requires City access to all public stormwater 

facilities.  The applicant shall provide construction plans that comply with the requirements of PW 

Design and Construction Standards 4.6.5.  

The stormwater outfall is within the Stream Corridor overlay. Development Code section 15.342.060 

requires a restoration plan for the disturbed area. The applicant shall provide a restoration plan for 

review and approval for the disturbed area that uses a combination of native trees, shrubs and grasses 

from the Newberg stream corridor plant list. The disturbed area shall be replanted to achieve 90 percent 

cover in one year. All disturbed areas shall be protected with erosion control devices prior to 

construction activity. The erosion control devices shall remain in place until 90 percent cover is 

achieved. 

 

NDC 15.505.030:  Streets and Alleys. The land divider or developer shall grade and 

pave all streets and alleys in the subdivision or partition to the width specified in 

15.505.060, and provide for drainage of all such streets and alleys, construct curbs and 

gutters within the subdivision or partition in accordance with specifications adopted by 

the City Council under 15.510.030.  Such improvements shall be constructed to 

specifications of the City under the supervision and direction of the Director.  It shall 

be the responsibility of the land divider or developer  to provide street signs 

Findings:  The proposed development is accessed by Wynooski Street which is under the jurisdiction of 

Yamhill County.  The applicant must obtain an access permit from Yamhill County for improvements to 

Wynooski Street. 

243 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

Wynooski Street is a major collector and a critical bike route as determined by the City of Newberg’s 

ADA/Pedestrian/Bike Route Improvement Plan and PW Design and Construction Standards Section 

5.15.  The information submitted by the applicant does not show bike lanes.  The applicant must provide 

revised plans that show that bike lanes will be constructed on the Wynooski Street frontage and that 

comply with the requirements of PW Design and Construction Standards Section 5.15. 

PW Design and Construction Standards Section 5.16 specifies the requirements for driveways.  The 

information submitted by the applicant is insufficient to determine whether the development will meet 

the requirements for driveways.  The applicant must submit revised plans that comply with the 

requirements of PW Design and Construction Standards Section 5.16. 

PW Design and Construction Standards Section 5.23 specifies the intersection sight distance for streets 

within the City of Newberg and requires a sight distance report.  The information submitted by the 

applicant did not address sight distances.  The applicant must provide a sight distance report that 

complies with the requirements of PW Design and Construction Standards Section 5.23.  

Per PWDCS, the developer shall be responsible for the repair and replacement of any off-site city 

infrastructure, including streets, which are damaged by construction activities. 

Per the Fire Code, the access road to lots 8, 9, and 10 is required to be a 20 foot wide driveable surface 

with “No Parking, Fire Lane” signs installed on both sides of the access.  

NDC 15.505.040:  Existing Streets.  A subdivision, partition or development requiring 

a Type II design review abutting or adjacent to an existing road of inadequate width, 

shall dedicate additional right-of-way to and improve the street to the width specified in 

15.505.060. 

NDC 15.505.210:  Sidewalks.  Sidewalks shall be located and constructed in 

accordance with the provisions of 15.510.030. Minimum width is five feet. 

NDC 15.510.070:  Street Trees.  Street trees shall be provided adjacent to all public 

rights-of-way abutting or within a subdivision or partition.  Street trees shall be 

installed in accordance with the provisions of 15.420.010(B) (4). 

15.430.010 Underground utility installation. 

A. All new utility lines, including but not limited to electric, communication, natural 

gas, and cable television transmission lines, shall be placed underground. This does 

not include surface-mounted transformers, connections boxes, meter cabinets, service 

cabinets, temporary facilities during construction, and high-capacity electric lines 

operating at 50,000 volts or above. 

B. Existing utility lines shall be placed underground when they are relocated, or when 

an addition or remodel requiring a Type II design review is proposed, or when a 

developed area is annexed to the city. 

C. The director may make exceptions to the requirement to underground utilities based 

on one or more of the following criteria: 

1. The cost of undergrounding the utility is extraordinarily expensive. 

2. There are physical factors that make undergrounding extraordinarily 

difficult. 

244 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

3. Existing utility facilities in the area are primarily overhead and are unlikely 

to be changed. 

 

Finding:  Wynooski Street does not meet current street width standard of 15.505.060.  The applicant 

proposes to provide an additional 10 feet of right-of-way to improve the street to the required width.  

This requirement is met.   

Wynooski Street currently contains sidewalks that are of inadequate width and that are in poor 

condition.  The applicant is proposing 5-foot setback sidewalks for the Wynooski Street frontage and 

within the proposed development.  This requirement is met. 

Street tree plan: Provide a landscape plan that identifies all planned tree species for street trees and 

common landscaping in accordance with NDC 15.420.010.  A landscape bond will be required for 

installation of street trees. 

Utility undergrounding: All new utility lines shall be placed underground, and the existing utility lines 

along Wynooski shall be undergrounded when they are relocated. 

 

II. VARIANCE CRITERIA THAT APPLY:  Newberg Development Code 15.215.040 

A. That strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified regulation 

would result in practical difficulty or unnecessary physical hardship inconsistent with 

the objectives of the zoning ordinance. 

Finding:  The R-2 zone limits the height of main buildings to 30 feet. Building height is measured from 

grade to the midpoint of the highest gable on a pitch roof. The applicant has submitted a variance 

request to increase the height limit to 33 feet, due to the site constraints that impact the property. They 

have submitted a drawing of the proposed houses. The highest gable on the house is approximately 31 

feet tall at its lowest point, and 34 feet 9-1/2 inches at its highest point; the midpoint of the highest gable 

is slightly less than 33 feet above grade. 

The stream corridor constrains development on 18,608 sf of the site. In order to meet the R-2 density 

standard for the site the developer has to create small narrow lots, which creates a practical difficulty. 

The developer has stated that it would be impracticable to develop the site to R-2 standards without a 

height variance to allow tall narrow buildings. 

B. That there are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions 

applicable to the property involved or to the intended use of the property which do not 

apply generally to other properties classified in the same zoning district.  

Finding: The stream corridor comprises approximately 21% of the entire 1.99 acre parcel, which 

does create an unusual or exceptional circumstance on this property which does not generally apply to 

other R-2 properties. 

245 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

C. That strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified regulation 

would deprive the applicant of privileges enjoyed by the owners of other properties 

classified in the same zoning district. 

Finding: The developer has argued that strict enforcement of the height limit would require small 

houses on these small, narrow lots, which would then be impracticable to develop at R-2 densities. It is 

true that owners of other properties in the R-2 district which do not have large stream corridor areas 

would have a simpler time developing to the R-2 density standard, and the variance request for a 10% 

height increase is not an overly large increase. 

D. That the granting of the variance will not constitute a grant of special privilege 

inconsistent with the limitations on other properties classified in the same zoning 

district. 

Finding: The proposed 10% height increase (from 30 feet to 33 feet) is not a large increase, and 

granting it would not constitute a grant of special privilege inconsistent with the limitations on other 

properties in the R-2 district. 

E. That the granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public health, 

safety or welfare or materially injurious to properties or improvements in the vicinity. 

Finding: The height increase from 30 to 33 feet is not a large increase, and would have no effect 

on the public health, safety or welfare. The houses would continue to meet all required setback and lot 

coverage standards, and the height increase would not be materially injurious to properties or 

improvements in the vicinity. 

Conclusion:  Based on the above-mentioned findings, the application meets the required criteria within 

the Newberg Development Code, subject to completion of the attached conditions.  

246 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

Exhibit B: Conditions to  
Order 2016-21 

 

Nova Grace tentative subdivision plan 

SUB3-16-001 

 
A. The applicant must provide the following information for review and approval prior to 

construction of any improvements: 

1. Construction Plans must be submitted for all infrastructure per the requirements 

below. 

General Requirements for engineering permit: 
The Public Works Design & Construction Standards require that the applicant submit 

engineered construction plans for review and approval of all utilities, public street 

improvements, and any new public streets being constructed.  Please note that additional 

Engineering Department plan review application and fees apply for review of plans.  

Submit any required easements for review and approval, and record approved easements. 

No construction of, or connection to, any existing or proposed public 

utility/improvements will be permitted until all plans are approved and all necessary 

permits have been obtained. 

The plans must note the following: 

Utilities: 

1. Water Requirements 

a. The applicant must provide a revised utility plan and profile sheets showing 

utility line separation that meets the requirements of PW Design and 

Construction Standards Section 3.2.4. 

b. The applicant must provide a revised utility plan that meets the alignment 

requirements of PW Design and Construction Standards Section 3.2.3 and 

Drawing 103. 

c. The applicant must provide a revised utility plan showing water service lines 

that meet the requirements of PW Design and Construction Standards Section 

3.3.9.   

d. The applicant must provide domestic flow calculations showing that the 

minimum pressure of the service lines meets the requirements of PW Design 

and Construction Standards Section 3.1. 

e. The applicant must provide fire flow calculations that meet the requirements 

of PW Design and Construction Standards (Section 3.1) to Engineering 

Services for review and approval. Show existing hydrants on drawings; new 

hydrants may be necessary to comply with the Fire Code. 

 

247 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

2.   Wastewater Requirements 

a. The applicant must abandon and remove the existing septic system as required 

by NMC 13.10.050 to NMC 13.10.070 or provide written confirmation from 

Yamhill County that it has previously been decommissioned and appropriately 

removed from the site. 

b. The applicant must provide a revised utility plan that meets the alignment 

requirements of PW Design and Construction Standards Section 2.4 and 

Drawing 103. 

3.   Stormwater Requirements: 

a. PW Design and Construction Standards 1.8.7 and the City of Newberg’s 

Erosion and Sediment Control Manual requires that the applicant provide a 

copy of the DEQ 1200-C permit to the City for review.   

b. The applicant must provide a revised utility plan that complies with PW 

Design and Construction Standards Section 4.3 and Drawing 103.   

c. The applicant must provide a revised utility plan that complies with PW 

Design and Construction Standards Section 4.4. 

d. The applicant must provide a revised stormwater report that provides the 

information required by PW Design and Construction Standards Section 4.5.  

e. The applicant must provide a revised stormwater report that meets the 

requirements and provides the engineering calculations required by PW 

Design and Construction Standards Sections 4.5 to 4.9. 

f. The applicant must provide a revised stormwater report with calculations that 

show volumes and velocities that meet PWDCS requirements.  

g. The applicant must provide a revised stormwater report that uses a calculated 

minimum time of concentration of 5 minutes. 

h. The applicant must provide a revised stormwater report with calculations that 

show the energy dissipater will reduce stormwater velocity to a non-erosional 

level.   

i. The applicant must provide the Engineering Department with the proposed 

language and final locations of the public easement for review and approval 

prior to recording the easement.  The easement must comply with the 

requirements of PW Design and Construction Standards Drawing 109.   

j. A private stormwater easement is required over tax lot 1000 for the 

stormwater flow; provide a draft easement for review and approval prior to 

recording the easement. 

k. The applicant must provide a revised maintenance plan to the City, for review 

and approval, that is appropriate for the type of stormwater facilities that will 

be constructed at the site. 

l. The applicant shall provide construction plans that comply with the 

requirements of PW Design and Construction Standards 4.6.5. 

m. Stormwater outfall in Stream Corridor: The applicant shall provide a 

restoration plan for review and approval for the disturbed area that uses a 

combination of native trees, shrubs and grasses from the Newberg stream 

corridor plant list. The disturbed area shall be replanted to achieve 90 percent 

cover in one year. All disturbed areas shall be protected with erosion control 

248 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

devices prior to construction activity. The erosion control devices shall remain 

in place until 90 percent cover is achieved. 

4.   Streets: 

a. The applicant must obtain an access permit from Yamhill County for 

improvements to Wynooski Street. 

b. Developer shall be responsible for the repair and replacement of any off-site 

city infrastructure, including streets, which are damaged by construction 

activities. 

c. The applicant must provide revised plans that show that bike lanes will be 

constructed on the Wynooski Street frontage and that comply with the 

requirements of PW Design and Construction Standards Section 5.15. 

d. The applicant must submit revised plans that comply with the requirements of 

PW Design and Construction Standards Section 5.16. 

e. The applicant must provide a sight distance report that complies with the 

requirements of PW Design and Construction Standards Section 5.23. 

f. Per the Fire Code, the access road to lots 8, 9, and 10 is required to be a 20 

foot wide driveable surface with “No Parking, Fire Lane” signs installed on 

both sides of the access. 

 

2. Street Tree Plan: Provide a landscape plan that identifies all planned tree species for 

street trees and common landscaping in accordance with NDC 15.420.010.  A landscape 

bond will be required for installation of street trees. 

3. Utility undergrounding: All new utility lines shall be placed underground, and the 

existing utility lines along Wynooski shall be undergrounded when they are relocated. 

B. The applicant must complete the following prior to final plat approval.  

1. Substantially Complete the Construction Improvements:  Prior to final plat approval, 

the applicant must substantially complete the construction improvements and secure for 

them in accordance with city policy.  Complete construction and call for a walk-through 

inspection with the Engineering Department (503-537-1273). 

a. Construct all public streets according to city standards for local residential streets. 

b. Construct all approved public utility lines, including stormwater facilities. 

 

C. Final Plat Application:  In accordance with NDC 15.235.150, submit the following for City 

review of the final plat application.  Construction improvements should be substantially 

complete at this point. 

1. Application Materials: 

a. Type I application form (found either at City Hall or on the website – 

www.newbergoregon.gov in the Planning Forms section) with the appropriate 

fees. 

b. A current title report (within 6 months old) for the property.  Include copies of all 

existing easements and CC&Rs that pertain to the property. 

c. A written response to these Conditions of Approval that specifies how each 

249 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

condition has been met. 

d. Two blue-line copies of the final subdivision plat for preliminary review by the 

City Engineering Services Department.   The City Engineer will make red-line 

comments on these sheets for your surveyor/engineer to correct prior to printing 

final Mylar copies. 

e. Any other documents required for review. 

 

2. Dedications/Easements Required:  The plat must show the following: 

a. Easements:  

i. All utility, wastewater, water and stormwater easements to the City. 

ii. 10 ft utility easements along all frontages. 

b. Dedications of Right-Of-Way as shown on the tentative plat and required by these 

conditions.   

 

3. Documents Required:  Provide the following documents for review and approval: 

a. A signed and notarized performance agreement that assures construction and 

performance in accordance with the approved final plans. 

b. A bond for street tree planting in an amount to be approved by the Planning 

Division. 

 

4. Final Mylar Copies of the Subdivision Plat:  Submit two final mylar copies of the 

corrected final subdivision plat (after red-line corrections have been made).  Original 

plats shall be in substantial conformity to the approved tentative plan and shall conform 

to the Yamhill County Surveyor’s specifications and requirements pertaining to material 

that has the characteristics of adequate strength, permanency, as well as suitability for 

binding and copying.  Plats shall be in clear and legible form and may be placed on as 

many sheets as necessary, but a face sheet and an index page shall be included for all 

plats placed upon three or more sheets.  Scale requirements shall be the same as specified 

for the tentative plans.   

D. The final plat process must be completed prior to issuance of any building permits.  The 

City will review the final plat application after the applicant has completed all of the 

conditions of approval listed above.   

1. City Review: In accordance with NDC 15.235.160 and 15.235.180, Planning staff shall 

determine that: 

a. Streets, roads, and alleys for public use are dedicated without any reservation or 

restriction other than reversionary rights upon vacation of any such street or road 

and easements for public utilities. 

b. The proposal complies with this code. 

c. The plat is in substantial conformity with the provisions of the tentative plan for 

the subdivision, as approved. 

d. The plat contains a donation to the public of all common improvements, including 

but not limited to streets, roads, parks, sewage disposal and water supply systems. 

e. Explanations of all common improvements required as conditions of approval of 

the tentative plan of the subdivision have been accounted for and referenced on 

the plat. 

250 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

f. There will exist an adequate quantity and quality of water and an adequate sewage 

disposal system to support the proposed use of the land described in the plat. 

g. Either: 

i. Improvements as required by this code or as a condition of tentative plan 

approval have been filed with the Director; or 

ii. A performance agreement (bond) or suitable substitute as agreed upon by 

the city and applicant has been filed with the Director in sufficient amount 

to insure the completion of all required improvements; or 

iii. A petition for improvements has been properly executed by the applicant 

who is effecting the subdivision and will be assessed for said 

improvements. 

h. Taxes, as well as public liens, assessments and fees, with respect to the 

subdivision area have been paid, or adequate guarantee has been provided 

assuring said taxes, liens, assessments and fees will be paid prior to recordation. 

i. The sub divider has entered into agreement with the city relating to completion of 

improvements, payment of sewer and water hookup fees, inspection fees, public 

lands payments, monumentation or any other elements deemed relevant to the 

purpose of this or any other city ordinance, state statute or federal law. 

j. If the conditions set at the time of tentative land division approval are not fulfilled 

and the final plat or final map is not recorded by the tentative plan expiration date, 

the tentative land division approval is null and void. 

 

2. Required Signatures: According to NDC 15.235.180, approval of a final subdivision 

plat must be acknowledged and signed by the following: 

a. Community Development Director 

b. The County Assessor 

c. The County Surveyor 

d. The City Recorder 

 

3. Recording: Deliver the approved subdivision plat to the office of the County Clerk for 

recording.  The County Clerk’s office is located at 414 NE Evans St, McMinnville, OR 

97128.    

 

4. Completion: Return an exact copy of the recorded plat to the Director to complete the 

subdivision process. 

 

E. Development Notes: 

1. Postal Service: The applicant shall submit plans to the Newberg Postmaster for approval 

of proposed mailbox delivery locations.  Contact the Newberg Post Office for assistance 

at 503-554-8014. 

2. PGE: PGE can provide electrical service to this project under terms of the current tariff 

which will involve developer expense and easements.  Contact the Service & Design 

Supervisor, PGE, at 503-463-4348. 

3. Frontier: The developer must coordinate trench/conduit requirements with Frontier. 

Contact the Engineering Division, Frontier, at 541-269-3375. 

4. Addresses:  The Planning Division will assign addresses for the new subdivision.  

251 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

Planning Division staff will send out notice of the new addresses after they receive a 

recorded mylar copy of the final subdivision plat.  

 

252 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

Exhibit C: Tentative Plan 

 

253 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

Attachment 1: Aerial photo  
 

 
 
  

254 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

Attachment 2: Zoning Map 
 

 
 

  

255 of 328 



Z:\WP5FILES\FILES.S\2016\SUB3-16-001 Nova Grace SD\PC staff report SUB3-16-001.VAR-16-001 Nova Grace.docx 

 

Attachment 3: Comments 
 

 

 

256 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION257 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION258 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION259 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION260 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION261 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION262 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION263 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION264 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION265 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION266 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION267 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION268 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION269 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION270 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION271 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION272 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION273 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION274 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION275 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION276 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION277 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION278 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION279 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION280 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION281 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION282 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION283 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION284 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION285 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION286 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION287 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION288 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION289 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION290 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION291 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION292 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION293 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION294 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION295 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION296 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION297 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION298 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION299 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION300 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION301 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION302 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION303 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION304 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION305 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION306 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION307 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION308 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION309 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION310 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION311 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION312 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION313 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION314 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION315 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION316 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION317 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION318 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION319 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION320 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION321 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION322 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION323 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION324 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION325 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION326 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION327 of 328 



ATTACHMENT 4: APPLICATION328 of 328 


	PC Packet_ANX-16-001 First Baptist_2016-0512.pdf
	Staff Report_ANX-16-001_FirstBaptistANX.doc
	Exhibit “A” to Planning Commission Resolution No. 2016-317
	Property Map – First Baptist Annexation
	Exhibit “B” to Planning Commission Resolution No. 2016-317
	Legal Description – First Baptist Annexation
	Exhibit “C” to Planning Commission Resolution No. 2016-317
	Findings –File ANX-16-001 – First Baptist Annexation
	A. 15.250.020 Conditions for annexation.
	B. 15.250.030 Quasi-judicial annexation criteria.
	C. 15.302.030 Procedures for comprehensive plan map and zoning map amendments.

	Attachment 1:  Aerial Photo
	Attachment 2:  Concept Development Plan
	Attachment 3:  Current Comprehensive Plan/Zoning Map
	Planning and Building Department

	Att.4.Application Packet.pdf
	Exh A - Title Report
	EPRE
	Map
	Vesting Deeds

	Exh B - Map and legal Description
	Vicinity Map
	Exh B - Map and legal Description

	Exh C - General Land Use Plan
	Exh D - Development Concept Statement
	Exh E - Public Facilities Financing Statement
	Exh F - Positive and Negative Effects Statement
	Exh G - Concept Pedestrian Connection Plan
	Exh H - ENG_BrettM.Memo_030416
	Exh I - Measure 49 Waiver
	Exh J - Annexation Consent Forms
	Exh K - Application
	Exhibit Sheets

	Att.5.public comment_Jellum_2016-0421.pdf




